
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, December 14, 2016 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 

 Agency Negotiators:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 
     Austris Rungis, IEDA 
 Employee Organizations:   Colma Peace Officers Association 
  Colma Communications/Records Association 
 Unrepresented Employees: All 
      City Manager 
      Chief of Police  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM  

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATION  

• Introduction of New Facility Attendant David Casilao and New Recreation Leaders Gabriel 
Gonzalez and Dinora Navarro. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the November 11, 2016 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for November 2016. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adopting an Amended Zoning Map and Approving a Planned 
Development Zone for 1670-1692 Mission Road (Rezoning Property from C/DR to PD/DR) 
(Second Reading). 

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Sections 5.01.080 and 5.03.350 
and Adding Section 5.03.355, to Regulate the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of 
Marijuana. (Second Reading). 

6. Motion to Receive and File the First Quarter (July 2016 – September 2016) Financial Report and 
Direct Staff to Post a Copy on the Town Website. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Final Map for the Colma Estates Subdivision Creating 
Nine Single Family Residential Lots at 442-468 B Street and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 

NEW BUSINESS 

8. CLIMATE ACTION PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE 

Consider: Motion to Accept the Climate Action Plan (CAP) Progress Report.  

9. COUNCIL OF CITIES AND CITY SELECTION  

Consider: Motion Confirming Designation of the Mayor as the Voting Member for the Council of 
Cities, Designating an Alternate Voting Member, and Giving the Voting Member Discretion on Any 
and All Matters to be Considered. 

10. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 2016 

Consider: Motion Approving Committee Assignments for 2017 and Granting to the Appointee 
Discretion in Voting on Matters Brought Before the Committee. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

11. BARK PARK  

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Adding Section 2.07.065 to the Colma Municipal 
Code, Relating to Bark Park Regulations, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference 
with Labor Negotiators 

 Agency Negotiators:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 
     Austris Rungis, IEDA 
 Employee Organizations:   Colma Peace Officers Association 
  Colma Communications/Records Association 
 Unrepresented Employees: All 
      City Manager 
      Chief of Police  
 
 There is no staff report for this item. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 6 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, November 9, 2016 

6:00 p.m. – Presentations 
7:00 p.m. – Regular Session 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:08 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
“Rae” Gonzalez, Joseph Silva and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

PRESENTATION 

 Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented the Halloween Decorating Contest
Winners.

 In honor of Veterans Day, Council recognized four veterans. Residents Elia Tealdi and Leo
Natale Tealdi were honored posthumously. Colma Police Officers Jorge Alvarado and Daniel
Mendoza were also honored.

 Council recognized and congratulated the following employees on their service
anniversaries:

Joe Silva - 20 years on City Council 
Rae Gonzalez - 8 years on City Council, 6 years as City Treasurer 
Diana Colvin - 8 years on City Council 
Sherwin Lum, Police Commander - 15 years 
Cindy Lim, Community Service Officer - 15 years 
Louis Gotelli, Public Work Maintenance Supervisor - 15 years 
Tiffany Jordan, Police Dispatcher - 10 years 
Jim Vitale, Police Officer - 10 years 
Caitlin Corley - City Clerk, 5 years 
Daisy Esquivias, Recreation Leader - 1 year  
Ramon Castro, Recreation Leader - 1 year  
Chelsea Chow, Recreation Leader - 1 year 
Micah Dela Cruz, Recreation Leader - 1 year 
Rafael Garcia, Facility Attendant - 1 year  
Vanessa Navarro, Facility Attendant - 1 year 
Carl Sanchez, Facility Attendant - 1 year 
Liz Tapia, Rec Coordinator - 1 year 
Daniel Mendoza, Police Officer – 1 year 

There was a break for coffee and cake from 6:51 p.m. to 7:17 p.m. 

Item #2



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested.  The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 
 
Action:  Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:19 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 12, 2016 Regular Meeting. 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 26, 2016 Special Meeting. 

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for October 2016. 

4. Motion Approving the 2017-2019 Strategic Plan as Presented by Staff. 

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 4.02 and Adding a New Subchapter 
4.04 of the Colma Administrative Code, Relating to Investments, Check Signature and 
Banking Transfer Policies. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Supporting an Application for OBAG 2 (One Bay Area Grant) 
for Local Streets and Roads (LSR) Prevention Program. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Program 
Supplement Agreement with California Department of Transportation for the Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report Program (SSARP). 

8. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending a Condition of Approval to the Tentative Subdivision 
Map Approval for Creating Nine Single Family Residential Lots Located At 442-468 B Street 
Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15332. 

9. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Rejecting All Bids Received for Phase V (Infill and Sitework) of 
the Colma Town Hall Renovation Project and Electing by a Four-Fifths Vote of the Council to 
Perform the Work by Force Account. 

  



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 9, 
with the note that Mayor Colvin and Council Member Silva would be abstaining from item 
#8; the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

10. 1670 – 1692 MISSION ROAD, VETERANS VILLAGE PROJECT 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. He noted a change in condition 
3(g) in the resolution in item 10c. Mayor Colvin opened the public hearing at 7:59 p.m. 
Residents Maureen O’Connor, Richard Rochetta and Mary Brodzin spoke. The Mayor closed 
the public hearing at 8:07 p.m. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Certifying the Final Environmental 
Impact Report and Adopting Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations, and the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, All Pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act, for a 66-Unit Affordable Housing Project at 1670-1692 Mission Road (“Veteran’s 
Village Affordable Housing Project”); the motion was seconded be Council Member Gonzalez 
and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to Introduce an Ordinance Adopting an Amended 
Zoning Map and Approving a Planned Development Zone for 1670-1692 Mission Road 
(Rezoning Property From C/DR To PD/DR), and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; 
the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

  



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved adopt a Adopt a Resolution Conditionally Approving 
Planned Development (PD) Conditional Use Permit, Design Review, Sign Permit and Tree 
Removal Permit for a 66-Unit Affordable Housing Project at 1670-1692 Mission Road, with 
noted change to condition 3(g); the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario 
and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 

11. TEMPORARY USE PERMIT – 2001 HILLSIDE BOULEVARD 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor Colvin opened the public 
hearing at 8:29 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Temporary 
Use Permit for Two (2) Automobile Dealership Vehicle Inventory Storage Areas at 2001 
Hillside Boulevard (APN: 011-440-010 & 011-440-020) Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
15304(e); the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 

 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

12. RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ORDINANCE  

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report.  Mayor Colvin opened the public 
hearing at 8:53 p.m. Citizen Patricia Simpson and Resident Maureen O’Connor spoke. The 
Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:57 p.m. Council discussion followed. Council requested 
that the marijuana delivery option be removed from the ordinances. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma 
Municipal Code Sections 5.01.080 and 5.03.350 and Adding Section 5.03.355, to Regulate 
the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana, with requested changes, and 
Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was seconded by Council Member 
Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Adopt an Urgency Ordinance Amending 
Colma Municipal Code Sections 5.01.080 and 5.03.350 and Adding Section 5.03.355, to 
Regulate the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana, with requested changes; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be Wednesday, December 14, 2016 at 7:00pm. 

REPORTS 

Joseph Silva  
 Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Pacifica – 10/21 

City Manager Sean Rabé gave a report on the following topics: 

 Colma received a Best Bay Area Roads award from the MTC for 2015.  



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 Colma was featured in Western Cities Magazine for its Beacon Award win at the League of 
California Cities Conference. 

 Associate Planner Turhan Sonmez has moved on from CSG Consulting and will no longer be 
working for the Town. We wish him well in his future endeavors! 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Colvin at 9:19 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Item #3



































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ord ###, 1670-1692 Mission Road – Planned Development (Introduced 11/9/16) Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO._____ 

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN AMENDED ZONING MAP AND APPROVING A 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONE FOR 1670-1692 MISSION ROAD (REZONING 

PROPERTY FROM C/DR TO PD/DR) 

Property Owner: Archdiocese of San Francisco 
Applicant: Mercy Housing California 66, L.P. 

Location: 1670-1692 Mission Road 
APN: 011-370-220 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

1. BACKGROUND

(a) The Town received an application from Mercy Housing California L.P. for approval of a
Planned Development for the property at 1670-1690 Mission Road, Colma (Assessor’s Parcel 
Number: 011-370-220) to allow for a 66 unit multi-family housing project (the “Project”). A 
Planned Development Rezoning is requested for multi-family uses in an existing Commercial (C) 
zone.  

(b) The application was reviewed pursuant to the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and the City Council considered all environmental impacts of 
the Project.  In so doing, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-55 certifying the Final 
Environmental Impact Report and adopting Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations, 
and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. 

(c) A public hearing was held on this matter on November 9, 2016 and evidence was taken 
at the public hearing 

(d) The City Council has duly considered said application, the staff report and public 
comments thereon. 

2. FINDINGS

The City Council finds that: 

a) That the proposed uses are, in substantial part, generally or conditionally permitted
under the zoning classification for the proposed district in existence at the time of the 
application.  

Discussion: The subject property is designated commercial in the General Plan, zoned 
Commercial/Design Review and located on Mission Road. The commercial land use 
designation and zoning district allow for multi-family residential with approval of a 
Planned Development (PD) rezoning and with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 
Provided that the City Council approves the Conditional Use Permit, the proposed uses 
are, in substantial part, generally or conditionally permitted under the zoning 
classification for the proposed district in existence at the time of the application.  

Item #4



Ord ###, 1670-1692 Mission Road – Planned Development (Introduced 11/9/16) Page 2 of 5 

The project site is designated in the 2015 Colma Housing Element for housing, and can 
only be developed for housing unless a suitable substitute site is found to replace the 
units that could have been built on the site.  

b) The uses proposed will not be detrimental to present and potential surrounding uses, 
but will have a beneficial effect which could not be achieved under other zoning districts.  

Discussion: The proposed project was evaluated for compliance with the Colma General 
Plan and Zoning Code. The proposed project was also evaluated under the California 
Environmental Quality Act to determine if the project posed any impacts on the 
environment. The Final EIR identifies mitigation measures that are required to reduce 
any impacts to a less than significant level. The project, with compliance with the 
mitigation measures, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of 
those in the vicinity. Zoning compliance includes an evaluation of the project’s 
compliance with development standards such a s setbacks, landscaping and off-street 
parking and signage. As set forth in the Planned Development zoning for site, the 
proposal meets all development standards. 

c) The streets and thoroughfares proposed are suitable and adequate to carry anticipated 
traffic and the density will not generate traffic in such amounts as to overload the street 
network outside the PD District.  

Discussion: All of the development is served by existing streets with all access from 
Mission Road. Anticipated traffic and the density will not generate traffic in such 
amounts as to overload the street network outside the PD District. As studied in the EIR, 
under cumulative conditions both without and with the project, the intersection of El 
Camino Real and Mission Road would operate at LOS C or better for all movements 
during both peak hours. The intersection of Mission Road and Lawndale Boulevard 
would operate at an acceptable LOS D during both the AM and PM peak hours under 
cumulative conditions both without and with the project. Under cumulative conditions 
with the project, the project site driveways would operate at an overall LOS A, with the 
worst movement (outbound out of the site driveway) operating at LOS B during both 
peak hours. Therefore, the project’s contribution to traffic volumes would not be 
cumulatively considerable so as to overload the street network outside the PD District. 

There is sufficient off-street parking proposed to satisfy anticipated parking demand for 
residents, employees and guests.  

d) The proposed development can be economically justified at the location proposed.  

Discussion: An investment of over 30 million dollars will be made on the project. Mercy 
Housing California will have the resources to maintain the project during the life of the 
project.  Therefore, the development can be economically justified at the location 
proposed.  

e) The impact created by the development can be absorbed and serviced by the Town.  

Discussion: The applicant proposes to staff the apartment building on a 24 hour basis 
and proposes to operate the facility in a manner that will minimize calls for police and 



Ord ###, 1670-1692 Mission Road – Planned Development (Introduced 11/9/16) Page 3 of 5 

fire services.  As discussed in the EIR, the project will create a minor increase in demand 
for recreation services, but not sufficient enough to warrant hiring of additional 
employees. No unusual demands for water and sewer service will occur.  Utilities exist in 
the adjacent street and are available to the property.  

3. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONE 

The City Council hereby approves and applies the Planned Development (PD) overlay zone to 
the property, as shown on the Amended Zoning Map attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated by reference herein, subject to the standards set forth in the next section.  
 
4. STANDARDS 

Development of the site will be subject to the following standards: 
 

(a) Land Use. The site may be developed and used for a 66 unit residential 
apartment building with supportive housing services and associated office, administrative, 
community and storage uses. A Planned Development Use Permit is required for the use.  

(b) Design Review. The design of the Site Plan and all structures on the site are 
subject to review and approval in accordance with the Town’s Design Review Standards. 

(c) Maximum Building Height. A three-story building is permitted on the site, not to 
exceed 39 feet in height to the highest point on the building, including the elevator shafts.  

(d) Street Frontage. A minimum eight (9) foot wide planting strip shall be provided 
and maintained along the Mission Road frontage (except at driveway cuts).   

(e) Off-Street Parking. The property shall have a minimum of sixty nine (69) off-
street parking spaces, including a minimum of four (4) disabled parking spaces, one of which 
must be van accessible. Standard spaces shall be no smaller than 9’ wide and 18’ long. Disabled 
parking spaces shall meet ADA width and overhead clearance requirements. All parking spaces 
shall be served by an access aisle no smaller than 24’ wide. Residents and employees shall use 
parking spaces in the back of the parking lot and the spaces behind the building to free up 
visitor parking spaces close to the building entrance, adjacent to Mission Road. 

(f) Open space features. Development of the site shall include: 

•  Two landscaped resident courtyard areas enclosed by an ornamental fence 
and site landscaping; 

• A dog park for resident use; 

• A publically accessible outdoor area (plaza) with a picnic table and 
interpretive historic display; and 

• An area with gardening plots for resident use.   

(g) Access. The horseshoe driveway on the site also functions as a fire lane and shall 
be kept free from vehicles and delivery trucks at all times.  The project relies on an access 



Ord ###, 1670-1692 Mission Road – Planned Development (Introduced 11/9/16) Page 4 of 5 

agreement from BART for the use of the driveway for emergency vehicle access and 35 parking 
spaces.   

(h) Minimum Building Setbacks. The new building shall be set back from the 
perimeter property boundary of the site. The existing pump house building will remain with a 
setback of approximately 1’ from Mission Road and approximately 3’ from the rear property line. 
The following distances shall apply for the new building: 

(i) From Mission Road (west):  9’-8”; 

(ii) From the south property corner:  300’; 

(iii) Rear setback:  18’; 

(iv) From the north boundary line, 100’; 

(i) Refuse Disposal and Recycling.  Adequate space for storage of standard 
containers and recycling for depositing trash and recyclable items awaiting pickup shall be 
provided. The Permittee must subscribe to a regular refuse and recyclable items collection 
service. 

(j) Site Security. The operator shall be responsible to provide site security. 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance shall be posted on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma 
within 15 days of its passage and is to take force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage. 
 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
// 
 
 
 



Ord ###, 1670-1692 Mission Road – Planned Development (Introduced 11/9/16) Page 5 of 5 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No.____ was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on November 9, 2016, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on _______, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ __________________________________
Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 1 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

ORDINANCE NO.___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 5.01.080 
AND 5.03.350 AND ADDING SECTION 5.03.355, TO REGULATE THE 

PERSONAL, MEDICAL, AND COMMERCIAL USE OF MARIJUANA 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) The Town of Colma, California (the “Town”) is a municipal corporation, duly organized 
under the constitution and laws of the State of California. 

(b) California Government Code section 65800 et seq. authorizes the adoption and 
administration of zoning laws, ordinances, rules and regulations by cities as a means  of 
implementing the General Plan. 

(c) The Town passed Ordinance No. 754 on January 13, 2016 to continue the Town’s 
prohibition on marijuana dispensaries, but adding to the prohibition list medical marijuana 
manufacturers, cultivation, and delivery services. 

(d) The Town desires to continue to ban all marijuana dispensaries, cultivation, and delivery 
service land uses within Town Limits to the extent allowed by California law. This Ordinance 
updates the Municipal Code to effectuate that aim.  

(e) On June 28, 2016, the Secretary of State certified Proposition 64, the Control, Regulate, 
and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (“AUMA”), for the November 8, 2016 ballot. 

(f) The AUMA is law as majority of the electorate voted “Yes” on the proposition. 

(g) The AUMA would regulate, among other items, the use of marijuana for personal and 
commercial purposes, including the recreational use of marijuana by adults over 21 years of 
age. 

(h) To regulate personal use of marijuana the AUMA would add Section11362.1 to the 
Health and Safety Code, which makes it “lawful under state and local law” for persons 21 years 
of age or older to “possess, process, transport, purchase, obtain, or give away to persons 21 
years of age or older without any compensation whatsoever” up to 28.5 grams of marijuana in 
the form of concentrated cannabis or not more than eight grams of marijuana in the form of 
concentrated cannabis contained in marijuana products. 

(i) The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to “possess, plant, cultivate, 
harvest, dry, or process not more than six living marijuana plants and possess the marijuana 
produced by the plants. 

(j) The AUMA would make it lawful for those individuals to smoke or ingest marijuana or 
marijuana products. 

Item #5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 2 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

(k) Should the AUMA pass, many of its provisions would take effect on November 9, 2016. 

(l) To regulate commercial use of marijuana, the AUMA would add Division 10 (Marijuana) 
to the Business & Professions Code, which grants state agencies “the exclusive authority to 
create, issue, renew, discipline, suspend, or revoke” licenses for businesses including the 
transportation, storage, distribution, sale, cultivation, manufacturing, and testing of marijuana. 

(m) The AUMA provides that the above state agencies shall promulgate rules and regulations 
and shall begin issuing licenses under Division 10 by January 1, 2018. 

(n) The AUMA states that a local jurisdiction shall not prevent transportation of marijuana or 
marijuana products on public roads by a licensee transporting marijuana or marijuana products 
in compliance with Division 10. 

(o) The AUMA would authorize cities to “reasonably regulate” without completely prohibiting 
cultivation of marijuana inside a private residence or inside an “accessory structure to a private 
residence located upon the grounds of a private residence that is fully enclosed and secure.” 

(p) The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit outdoor cultivation on the 
grounds of a private residence, up to and until a “determination by the California Attorney 
General that nonmedical use of marijuana is lawful in the State of California under federal law.” 

(q) The AUMA would authorize cities to completely prohibit the establishment or operation 
of any marijuana business licensed under Division 10 within its jurisdiction, including marijuana 
dispensaries, marijuana retailers, and marijuana delivery services. 

(r) Absent appropriate local regulation authorized by the AUMA, state regulations will 
control. 

(s) The “Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act” (“MMRSA”), which took effect 
January 1, 2016, regulates use of marijuana for medical purposes. 

(t) The MMRSA contains a provision which provides that the State shall become the sole 
authority for regulation under certain parts of the Act unless local governments pass their own 
regulations. 

(u) In May 2013, the California Supreme Court held in City of Riverside v. Inland Empire 
Patients Health and Wellness Center, Inc., 56 Cal. 4th 729 (2013) that cities have the authority 
to regulate or ban outright medical marijuana land uses. 

(v) The California Attorney General’s August 2008 Guidelines for the Security and Non-
Diversion of Marijuana Grown for Medical Use recognizes that the cultivation or other 
concentration of marijuana in any location or premises without adequate security increases the 
risk that nearby homes or businesses may be negatively impacted by nuisance activity such as 
loitering or crime. 

(w) Under the Federal Controlled Substances Act, the use, possession, and cultivation of 
marijuana are unlawful and subject to federal prosecution without regard to a claimed medical 
need. 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 3 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

(x) The indoor cultivation of marijuana has potential adverse effects to the health and 
safety of the occupants; including structural damage to the building due to increased moisture 
and excessive mold growth which can occur and can pose a risk of fire and electrocution; 
additionally, the use of pesticides and fertilizers can lead to chemical contamination within the 
structure. 

(y) Based on the experiences of other cities, these negative effects on the public health, 
safety, and welfare are likely to occur, and continue to occur, in the Town due to the 
establishment and operation of marijuana cultivation, processing, and distribution uses. 

(z) The subject Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3) and 15061(b)(3). The activity is not subject to 
CEQA because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in 
the environment; the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378, and the activity is 
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects, which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is 
not subject to CEQA. 

(aa) This Ordinance would amend Chapters 5.01 and 5.03 to clarify the substantive 
objectives of the Municipal Code regarding the Town’s regulation of marijuana within its Town 
limits and to preemptively address some proposed changes to California law as the AUMA 
passed on November 8, 2016. 

 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings 
of the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 
 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 5.01.080 AMENDED. 

Section 5.01.080 is amended to remove the following: 

5.01.080 Definitions. 

Cannabis means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa Linnaeus, Cannabis indica, or Cannabis 
ruderalis,  whether  growing  or  not;  the  seeds  thereof;  the  resin,  whether  crude  or  
purified, extracted  from  any  part  of  the  plant;  and  every  compound,  manufacture,  salt,  
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or resin. “Cannabis” also means the 
separated resin, whether crude or purified, obtained from marijuana. “Cannabis” also means 
marijuana as defined by Section 11018 of the Health and Safety Code as enacted by Chapter 
1407 of the Statutes of 1972.  

Cannabis dispensary means a facility where cannabis, cannabis products, or devices for the use 
of cannabis or cannabis products are offered, either individually or in any combination, for retail 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 4 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

sale, including an establishment that delivers cannabis and cannabis products as part of a retail 
sale. 

Cannabis manufacturer means a person that conducts the production, preparation, propagation, 
or compounding of manufactured cannabis, or cannabis products either directly or indirectly or 
by extraction methods, or independently by means of chemical synthesis or by a combination of 
extraction  and  chemical  synthesis  at  a  fixed  location  that  packages  or  repackages  
medical cannabis or cannabis products or labels or relabels its container. 

Cannabis  Cultivation means  any  activity  involving  the  planting,  growing,  harvesting,  
drying, curing, grading, or trimming of cannabis. 

Cannabis  Delivery  means  the  commercial  transfer  of  cannabis  or  cannabis  products,  and 
includes origination or termination within the Town as well as a delivery business. 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary means any  facility  or location, whether fixed  or mobile, where 
medical marijuana is made available to or distributed by or distributed to one (1) or more of the 
following: a primary caregiver, a qualified patient, or a patient with an identification card, as 
those terms are defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 et seq. A “Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary” shall not include the following uses, as long as the location of such uses 
is otherwise regulated by this Code or applicable law: a clinic licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of 
Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code; a healthcare facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of 
Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code; a facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 
of  the  Health  and  Safety  Code;  a  residential  care  facility  for  persons  with  chronic  life 
threatening  illness  licensed  pursuant  to  Chapter  3.01  of  Division  2  of  the  Health  and  
Safety Code; a residential care facility for elderly licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 
of the Health and Safety Code; a residential hospice, or a home health agency licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 8 of Division 2 of the Health & Safety Code, as long as such use complies 
strictly with applicable law, including but not limited to, Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5 
et seq. 

 

ARTICLE 4. CMC SECTION 5.01.080 AMENDED. 

Section 5.01.080 is amended to add the following: 

5.01.080 Definitions. 

“Commercial marijuana activity” includes the cultivation, possession, manufacture, distribution, 
processing, storing, laboratory testing, labeling, transportation, distribution, delivery or sale of 
marijuana and marijuana products. 

“Cultivation” means any activity involving the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, curing, 
grading, or trimming of marijuana. 

“Delivery” means the commercial transfer of marijuana or marijuana products to a customer. 
"Delivery" also includes the use by a retailer of any technology platform owned and controlled 
by the retailer, or independently licensed under California law, that enables customers to 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 5 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

arrange for or facilitate the commercial transfer by a licensed retailer of marijuana or marijuana 
products. 

“Distribution” means the procurement, sale, and transport of marijuana and marijuana products 
between entities for commercial use purposes. 

“Licensee” means the holder of any state issued license related to marijuana activities, including 
but not limited to licenses issued under Division 10 of the Business & Professions Code. 

“Manufacture” means to compound, blend, extract, infuse, or otherwise make or prepare a 
marijuana product. 

“Marijuana” means all parts of the plant Cannabis sativa L., whether growing or not; the seeds 
thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, 
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin. It does not include: 

 1. Industrial hemp, as defined in Section 11018.5 of the California Health & Safety 
Code; or  

 2. The weight of any other ingredient combined with marijuana to prepare topical 
or oral administrations, food, drink, or other product. 

“Marijuana accessories” means any equipment, products or materials of any kind which are 
used, intended for use, or designed for use in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing, 
harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, converting, producing, processing, preparing, testing, 
analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, smoking, vaporizing, or containing marijuana, or for 
ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing marijuana or marijuana products into the human 
body. 

“Marijuana products” means marijuana that has undergone a process whereby the plant 
material has been transformed into a concentrate, including, but not limited to, concentrated 
cannabis, or an edible or topical product containing marijuana or concentrated cannabis and 
other ingredients. 

“Person” includes any individual, firm, co-partnership, joint venture, association, corporation, 
limited liability company, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, or any other group or 
combination acting as a unit, and the plural as well as the singular. 

“Private residence” means a house, an apartment unit, a mobile home, or other similar 
dwelling. 

"Sale" includes any transaction whereby, for any consideration, title to marijuana is transferred 
from one person to another, and includes the delivery of marijuana or marijuana products 
pursuant to an order placed for the purchase of the same and soliciting or receiving an order for 
the same, but does not include the return of marijuana or marijuana products by a licensee to 
the licensee from whom such marijuana or marijuana product was purchased. et seq. 

 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 6 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

ARTICLE 5. CMC SECTION 5.03.350 AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.350(c) is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

(c) The following uses are prohibited in all districts: amusement parks or centers, circuses, 
carnivals, outdoor theaters, race tracks, commercial recreation centers, stockyards, and  the 
slaughtering of animals and cannabis dispensaries, cannabis manufacturers, cannabis 
cultivation, cannabis distribution, and cannabis delivery services. 

 

ARTICLE 6. CMC SECTION 5.03.355 ADDED. 

Section 5.03.355 is added to read in its entirety as follows: 

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to regulate personal, medical, and commercial 
marijuana uses. Nothing in this Section shall preempt or make inapplicable any provision of 
state or federal law. 

(b) Personal Use.  

(1) For purposes of this subsection, personal recreational use, possession, purchase, 
transport, or dissemination of marijuana shall be considered unlawful in all areas of the 
Town to the extent it is unlawful under California law. 

(2) Outdoor Cultivation. A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process 
marijuana plants outdoors in any zoning district of the Town. No use permit, building 
permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

(3) Indoor Cultivation. 

(i) A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process marijuana 
plants inside a private residence, or inside an accessory structure to a private 
residence located upon the grounds of a private residence, or inside any other 
enclosed structure within any zoning district of the Town. No use permit, building 
permit, variance, or any other permit or entitlement, whether administrative or 
discretionary, shall be approved or issued for any such use or activity. 

(ii) To the extent a complete prohibition on indoor cultivation is not 
permitted under California law, a person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or 
process marijuana plants inside a private residence, or inside an accessory 
structure to a private residence located upon the grounds of a private residence, 
unless the person is issued an indoor cultivation permit by the Planning 
Department. A person may not plant, cultivate, harvest, dry, or process 
marijuana plants inside any enclosed structure within any zoning district of the 
Town which is not either a private residence or an accessory structure to a 
private residence located upon the grounds of a private residence. 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 7 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

(iii) The Planning Department will issue application and processing guidelines 
for the indoor cultivation permit. No indoor cultivation permit shall be issued 
prior to the release of these guidelines, and no permit shall be granted which has 
not complied fully with the application and processing requirements. 

(c) Medical Use. 

(1) Cultivation of medical marijuana pursuant to Section 11362.77 of the California 
Health & Safety Code is subject to the cultivation requirements laid out in subsection (b) 
of this Section.  

(2) The establishment or operation of any medical marijuana collective, cooperative, 
dispensary, delivery service, operator, establishment, or provider shall be considered a 
prohibited use in all zoning districts of the Town. No use permit, variance, building 
permit, or any other entitlement or permit, whether administrative or discretionary, shall 
be approved or issued for the establishment of any collective, cooperative, dispensary, 
delivery service, operator, establishment, or provider in any zoning district, and no 
person shall otherwise establish such businesses or operations in any zoning district. 

(d) Commercial Use. 

(1) The establishment or operation of any business of commercial marijuana activity 
is prohibited. No use permit, variance, building permit, or any other entitlement or 
permit, whether administrative or discretionary, shall be approved or issued for the 
establishment or operation of any such business or operation. Such prohibited 
businesses or operations may include, but are not limited to: 

(i) The transportation, delivery, storage, distribution, or sale of marijuana, 
marijuana products, or marijuana accessories; 

(ii) The cultivation of marijuana; 

(iii) The manufacturing or testing or marijuana, marijuana products, or 
marijuana accessories; or 

(iv) Any other business licensed by the state or other government entity 
under Division 10 of the California Business & Professions Code, as it may be 
amended from time to time. 

(e) Penalty for Violations. No person, whether as principal, agent, employee or otherwise, 
shall violate, cause the violation of, or otherwise fail to comply with any of the requirements of 
this section. Every act prohibited or declared unlawful, and every failure to perform an act made 
mandatory by this section, shall be a misdemeanor or an infraction, at the discretion of the City 
Attorney or the District Attorney. In addition to the penalties provided in this section, any 
condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this section is 
declared a public nuisance and may be abated as provided in Subchapter 1.05 of this Municipal 
Code and/or under state law.  

 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 8 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

ARTICLE 7. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE 8. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

ARTICLE 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the Town Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. __ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on November 9, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on December __, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ __________________________________
Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Ordinance No. __ - Regulating the Personal, Medical, and Commercial Use of Marijuana Page 9 of 9 
(Introduced 11/9/16) 

 



Staff Report re First Quarter 2016-2017 Financial Report  Page 1 of 2 
 [11/15/2016] 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Paul S. Rankin, Contract Finance Director 

VIA:   Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016 

SUBJECT: First Quarter Financial Report (July 2016 – September 2016) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 

MOTION TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE FIRST QUARTER (JULY 2016 – SEPTEMBER 2016) 
FINANCIAL REPORT AND DIRECT STAFF TO POST A COPY ON THE TOWN WEBSITE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to provide the City Council and the public with periodic updates on the Town Finances, 
Staff prepared a Quarterly Report. The focus of the information is on the General Fund. This 
report compares the current year performance to the amended Budget as well as providing a 
comparison to the same period in the previous year.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Although there are some deviations based on timing, overall revenue and expenses are tracking 
as expected with the current Budget.  

ANALYSIS 

Staff reviewed the revenue and expenditures recorded during the first three months of the 
Fiscal Year. This serves as a means to formally assess the budget performance as well as to 
serve as possible early disclosure if trends are not following the expected pattern. The review 
was completed prior to any audit adjustments from June 30, 2016 results. 

The Quarterly Report (Attachment A) summarizes the results at a high level and also discusses 
the reasons for any significant deviations. Most of the deviations are caused by timing 
differences. Since history can also be helpful in detecting deviations, the report also provides a 
matching snapshot for the same period in the previous year. 

The General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $16.6 million and budgeted 
expenditures of $14.0 million. In addition the General Fund has net budgeted transfers of 
approximately $0.9 million. Approximately 12% of the budgeted revenue was collected in the 
first 3 months. This is typical since sales tax, the most significant revenue, lags by 
approximately 3 months. Total expenditures to date were approximately 33% of the amount 

Item #6



Staff Report re First Quarter 2016-2017 Financial Report       Page 2 of 2 
 [11/15/2016] 

budgeted. This was impacted by the pre-payment of PERS retirement costs and is a trend 
similar to the previous year.  

The format of the report has been revised to also include a high level summary table of the 
status of all funds. Prior reports have focused solely on the General Fund. Additional details are 
described in Attachment A.  

Reasons For the Recommended Action 
 
Acceptance of the report provides disclosure of current year revenue and expenditure trends.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
 
The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public 
involvement. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff is requesting that the City Council receive and file the report and direct Staff to post a 
copy to the Town website.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Quarterly Financial Report – First Quarter 2016-2017 (July 2016 – September 2016).  

 



QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
FIRST QUARTER 2016-2017 

(July 1, 2016 – September 30, 2016) 

Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 1 FY 2016/17) Page 1 of 4 

This report provides an overview and summarized information on the Town Finances. For the Town of 
Colma, the General Fund represents the most significant portion of the annual revenue and 
expenditures. Therefore, the focus of the report will be on the performance of the General Fund, 
unless otherwise noted. The format of the report compares preliminary data from the Prior Year 
actual results to the Current Year Budget / Quarterly Actual. The prior year amounts are subject to 
final audit adjustments.  

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL POSITION 

In Fiscal Year 2016-2017 the General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $16.6 million 
and budgeted expenditures of $14.0 million. In addition the General Fund has net budgeted transfers 
of approximately $0.9 million. A transfer represents resources in one fund that are transferred to 
another fund. The primary transfers in the current year budget are for Capital Project funding and 
Debt Service. 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Actual Fiscal 
Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% Actual 
For Period

Budget 
Fiscal Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% of 
Budget 

For Period

Revenue $17,731,195 $1,354,112 7.6% $16,582,712 $2,064,142 12.4%
Expenditures (13,410,013) (4,961,871) 37.0% (13,982,550) (4,594,651) 32.9%
Transfers In 0 0 0 0
Transfers (Out) (9,833,630) 0 (853,170) 0
Net Change (5,512,447) (3,607,759) 1,746,992 (2,530,509)
Beginning Balance 28,117,913 28,117,911 22,639,938 22,639,938
Balance Year To Date 22,605,466 24,510,152 24,386,930 20,109,429

MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES 

Over 90 percent of the budgeted General Fund Revenues are concentrated in four revenue types. 
Revenues collected are not evenly distributed from month to month.  

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Actual Fiscal 
Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% Actual 
For Period

Budget 
Fiscal Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% of 
Budget 

For Period

Sales Taxes $10,851,062 $552,800 5.1% $10,550,000 $1,155,983 11.0%
Cardroom Taxes 4,039,518 625,725 15.5% 3,790,000 714,964 18.9%
Property Taxes 562,378 746 0.1% 576,300 995 0.2%
Sewer Fees 836,480 0 0.0% 710,000 0 0.0%
Sub-Total Major Revenue $16,289,438 $1,179,271 7.2% $15,626,300 $1,871,941 12.0%

Total All Gen Fund Revenue $17,731,195 $1,354,112 $16,582,712 $2,064,142
% of Total Revenue (5 Revenues) 91.9% 87.1% 94.2% 90.7%

As shown in the previous table only 12% of the expected General Fund Revenue was collected in the 
first quarter of the Fiscal Year. A narrative explanation is provided below for key deviations. 

Attachment A



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 1 FY 2016/17)  Page 2 of 4 
 

MAJOR REVENUE (Continued) 

• Sales Tax revenue in the first quarter represents mostly advances received and the Board of 
Equalization will issue a clean-up payment in the next quarter.  

• Sales Tax in the previous year was lower due to the State distribution late in the year of the 
sales tax / “triple-flip funds”. The wind-down of triple flip payments was mostly completed last 
year. 

• Cardroom taxes collected in the first quarter are running ahead of last year. Staff will be 
monitoring actual collections as part of any mid-year budget adjustments. 

• Sewer Fees are collected on the Property Tax bill. The majority of payments collected on the 
Property Tax bill are received in December and April. 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

When compared to the prior year performance expenditures in the first quarter were lower in the 
current year.  

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Actual Fiscal 
Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% Actual 
For Period

Budget 
Fiscal Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% of 
Budget 

For Period

General Government $3,194,542 $1,689,368 52.9% $3,081,870 $1,094,408 35.5%
Police 5,535,529 1,633,635 29.5% 6,215,960 1,996,654 32.1%
Engineering / Building / Planning 1,381,129 198,605 14.4% 1,407,000 137,959 9.8%
Public Works Maintenance 1,970,819 1,088,967 55.3% 1,735,530 997,561 57.5%
Recreation Services 864,463 257,546 29.8% 961,740 278,883 29.0%
Facility Maintenance 463,531 93,750 20.2% 580,450 89,185 15.4%
TOTAL $13,410,013 $4,961,871 37.0% $13,982,550 $4,594,651 32.9%

 

• General Government expenditures are lower in the current year, because in FY 2015-16 the 
retiree medical expense is reported entirely under the General Government category. With the 
establishment of an OPEB Trust the entire annual estimated contribution was paid into the 
Trust in July 2016. In the current year these costs are budgeted proportionately in each 
Department. 

• Police expenses are more than the prior year primarily due to fewer vacancies, increases 
retirement costs, and the inclusion of Retiree Medical expenses in each Department. 

• Engineering / Planning / and Building are contract services and there can be differences in 
timing of the payments.  

• Public Works costs are lower due primarily to lower contract sewer service costs in the current 
year.  

 

 

 

 



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 1 FY 2016/17)  Page 3 of 4 
 

The following table also displays the expenses organized by expenditure type. 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

Actual Fiscal 
Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% Actual 
For Period

Budget 
Fiscal Year

1st Qtr 
Actual

% of 
Budget 

For Period

Salaries & Benefits $7,131,857 $2,812,634 39.4% $8,128,220 $2,657,054 32.7%
Operating Services & Supplies 2,272,106 333,588 14.7% 1,690,980 298,032 17.6%
Contractual / Professional Services 2,207,236 363,562 16.5% 2,372,350 288,922 12.2%
Infrastructure Maint Contract Svcs 281,416 42,264 15.0% 306,000 21,512 7.0%
Sewer Services 940,029 916,467 97.5% 890,000 814,542 91.5%
Insurance (Liability/Property/WC) 577,369 493,355 85.4% 595,000 514,589 86.5%
TOTAL $13,410,013 $4,961,871 37.0% $13,982,550 $4,594,651 32.9%
OTHER USES / (TRANSFERS) $9,833,630 $0 $853,170 $0
EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS $23,243,643 $4,961,871 $14,835,720 $4,594,651

 

Overall the expenditures for the first quarter are expected to trend within the adopted budget. 
Information related to significant deviations are discussed below:    

• As shown in the previous table salaries and benefits are the most significant portion of General 
Fund expenditures.  

• Contract services include a variety of professional as well as service contracts associated with 
providing Town services. 

• Sewer Service Charges are near the full budgeted amount after the first quarter. This is a 
typical pattern as the collection and treatment system payments to the providers are made in 
the first quarter of the Fiscal Year. 

• Insurance costs are near the full budgeted amount after the first quarter. This is a typical 
pattern as most of these costs are insurance premiums. The premium payment is due in the 
first month of the Fiscal Year. 

HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY – ALL FUNDS 

The final page of this report includes a Table summarizing “All Funds” and their activity for the first 
quarter. format was prepared by the Finance Department to highlight in summary fashion key 
indicators of the Town Financial performance. As mentioned earlier the General Fund is the most 
significant to the operations of the Town, however, it is also appropriate to consider the other sources 
of funding. As shown the balance held in Capital Project Funds is approximately $12.6 million. Also at 
the end of Fiscal Year 2015/2016 the City Council authorized a Fleet Replacement Fund, which has a 
balance of nearly $0.8 million.  

ADDITIONAL DETAILS AND INFORMATION 

This format was prepared by the Finance Department to highlight in summary fashion key indicators 
of the Town Financial performance. Additional Financial Reports and Budgets are also available on the 
Town website www.colma.ca.gov. This report will be also be posted on the Town website. 

 

 



Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 1 FY 2016/17) Page 4 of 4 

TOWN OF COLMA QUARTERLY REPORT OF ALL FUNDS
(PRELIMINARY BALANCE AND ACTIVITY - CASH BASIS)

QUARTER 1

(Pre-Audit) Fiscal Year To Date

FUND TYPE / NAME

BEGINNING 
FUND 

BALANCE 
7/1/16

YTD REVENUE
TRANSFERS IN / 

(OUT)
YTD 

EXPENDITURES

PRELIMINARY 
ENDING 

BALANCE YTD

General
11-General Fund $21,981,288 $2,064,142 ($4,594,651) $19,450,779

Sub-Total 21,981,288 2,064,142 0 (4,594,651) 19,450,779

Special Revenue
21-State Gas Tax Fund 28,012 10,165 (1,589) 36,589
22- Measure A Transportation 58,438 9,195 0 67,633
29- Police Grants / (COPS) 127,619 38,876 (20,357) 146,138

Sub-Total 214,069 58,236 0 (21,946) 250,360

Capital Project Funds
31- General CIP 8,772,941 0 (159,396) 8,613,545
33- Town Hall CIP Financed $ 4,457,192 6,406 (481,240) 3,982,359

Sub-Total 13,230,134 6,406 0 (640,636) 12,595,904

Debt Service Funds
43- COP Debt Service 62 0 0 0 62

Sub-Total 62 0 0 0 62

Internal Service Funds
61-Fleet Replacement 776,421 2,084 0 0 778,505

Sub-Total 776,421 2,084 0 0 778,505

Trust Funds*
71-OPEB-Retiree Medical 1,094,504 299,463 0 (176,405) 1,217,562
72-Retirement (PARS) 18,914 404 0 (8) 19,311

Sub-Total 1,113,418 299,867 0 (176,412) 1,236,873

GRAND TOTAL $37,315,391 $2,430,736 $0 ($5,433,645) $34,312,482

* These Trust Funds were established to report funding contributed to an irrevocable trust for retirement benefit purposes.
The funds are not availble to the Town for General Operating and / or discretionary expenditures.



Staff Report re Tealdi Final Map Approval Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29375544.1
11/29/16  

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Cyrus Kianpour, City Engineer 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016  

SUBJECT:   442-468 B Street - Colma Estates Subdivision 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR THE COLMA ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
CREATING NINE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS AT 442-468 B STREET AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 
AGREEMENT  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On June 22, 2016, the City Council approved the tentative map for the nine- lot subdivision 
located at 442 - 468 B Street (Colma Estates Subdivision/Tealdi Subdivision).  The City Engineer 
has examined the Final Map for the Tealdi Subdivision (Attachment B) and determined that the 
Final Map is in substantial conformance with the Tentative Map pursuant to California 
Government Code (GC) Section 66442.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

NONE 

ANALYSIS 

The site is currently one lot that includes greenhouse structures and a residence.  The Applicant 
has an approved Tentative Map for this nine-Lot Subdivision and desires to have the City 
Council approve the related Final Map for same.   

The applicant has agreed to install all public improvements for the 9 individual lots along B 
Street including sidewalks, street trees, street lighting, sewer, water, gas, electric, Comcast and 
AT&T.  Subdivision improvement plans have been developed to document this commitment and 
a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been developed which will be recorded with the 
Final Map to ensure the public improvements are completed.   

The City Engineer has also reviewed and approved Civil Improvement Plans for the Colma 
Estates dated 11/8/2016 and the related Subdivision Improvement Agreement for public 

Item #7



Staff Report re Tealdi Final Map Approval Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29375544.1
11/29/16  

improvements pursuant to the Conditions of Approval and CMC 5.02.100.  The developer has 
also executed a Subdivision Improvement Agreement (Attachment C), as approved by the City 
Attorney as to form, and by the City Engineer as to substance, pursuant to CMC 5.02.170, paid 
all development fees and provided improvement securities ($200K for faithful performance and 
$200K for labor and materials) to guarantee completion of required public improvements. 

The Final Map for the Colma Estates Subdivision conforms to all of the requirements of the 
State of California Subdivision Map Act and the Colma Municipal Code, Subchapter 5.02 
Subdivision and Parcel Maps. 

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because the proposed 
Final Map has been carefully reviewed to be substantially conforming with the approved 
Tentative Map and includes the required Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Approval of this final subdivision map is a ministerial action exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline Section 15268(b)(3). Further, the Subdivision Improvement Agreement which 
ensures certain public improvements are completed as part of the overall Project is further 
exempt under CEQA Guideline Section 15332, Class 32, because the proposed project is 
characterized as in-fill development. 

Alternatives 

The City Council shall not deny approval of a final map if it has previously approved a tentative 
map for the proposed subdivision and finds that the final map is in substantial compliance with 
the previously approved tentative map pursuant to GC Section 66474.1.  Therefore, once the 
City Engineer certifies the final map, there are no additional discretionary grounds for the City 
Council to disapprove the final map.  

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Approve Final Map for the Colma Estates at 442-468 B Street Subdivision (9 lots); and

2. Authorize the City Manager to Execute the related Subdivision Improvement Agreement

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Final Map 
C. Subdivision Improvement Agreement 



Res. 2016-__, Tealdi Subdivision Final Map Approval Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29375456.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL MAP FOR THE COLMA ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
CREATING NINE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS AT 442-468 B STREET AND 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 
AGREEMENT  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) On June 22, 2016, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-31, the City Council granted a
tentative subdivision map for nine single family residential lots located at 442-468 B Street. 

(b) B STREET COLMA LLC (the “Applicant”) is now seeking final map approval to subdivide 
the lots. 

(c) Pursuant to Colma Municipal Code Section 5.02.100 and the California Subdivision Map 
Act, California Government Code Section 66410, et seq., the City Council shall approve the final 
map if it substantially conforms to all requirements applicable at the time of the conditional 
approval of the tentative map or, if it does not so conform, disapprove the map. 

(d) Further, pursuant to Colma Municipal Code Section 5.02.100, if at the time of approval 
of the final map by the City Council, any public improvements have not been completed and 
accepted, the City Council, as a condition precedent to the approval of the final map, shall 
require the Applicant to enter into a subdivision improvement agreement. 

2. Findings

(a) The City Council hereby finds that approval of the final map is a ministerial action and is
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline Section 15268(b)(3).  Further, the approval of the subdivision improvement 
agreement which ensures certain public improvements are completed as part of the overall 
Project is further exempt under CEQA Guideline Section 15332, Class 32, because the proposed 
project is characterized as in-fill development. 

(b) The City Council hereby finds that the final map substantially conforms to the tentative 
map approved on June 22, 2016 pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-31. 

3. Order

(a) The City Council hereby approves the final map and authorizes the City Manager to
execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement, with any minor changes deemed necessary 
by the City Attorney. 

Attachment A



Res. 2016-__, Tealdi Subdivision Final Map Approval Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29375456.1  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on December 14, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Attachment B





BBK 

25977.00100\29375534.1

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

Town of Colma 
1188 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
Attn: Cyrus Kianpour, City Engineer 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

Exempt from recording fee, per Government Code 
Section 6103 

TOWN OF COLMA, CALIFORNIA 

By: ________________________________________ 
City Clerk 

AGREEMENT FOR COMPLETION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

FOR THE 

COLMA ESTATES 

between 
TOWN OF COLMA 

a California municipal corporation 

and 
B STREET COLMA LLC. 

a California limited liability corporation 

Attachment C



2   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

 
 
 
 



3   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

 
AGREEMENT FOR COMPLETION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

FOR THE COLMA ESTATES 

I. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement for the Completion of Public Improvements (“Agreement”) is entered 
into as of this ____ day of _________________, 2016 by and between the Town of Colma, a 
California municipal corporation (“City”) and B Street Colma LLC. A Limited Liability 
corporation with its principal office located at 555 California St, Suite 4925, San Francisco, CA 
94104 (“Developer”).  City and Developer are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as 
“Party” and hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

II. RECITALS. 

A. In May of 2016 the Developer submitted to City an application for approval of a 
tentative map for real property located within City, a legal description of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” (“Property”).  The tentative map was prepared on behalf of Developer by Harvey 
F. Blomquist and is identified in City records as the Colma Estates Subdivision. 

B. Developer’s application for a tentative map for the Colma Estates Subdivision 
was deemed complete on February 4, 2016.  On June 22, 2016, the Town of Colma City Council 
conditionally approved Developer’s application for a tentative map for Colma Estates  
Subdivision. 

C. Developer has not completed all of the work or made all of the public 
improvements required the Town’s Municipal Code Section 5.02.100, the Subdivision Map Act 
(Government Code sections 66410 et seq.) (“Map Act”), the conditions of approval for Colma 
Estates  Subdivision, or other ordinances, resolutions, or policies of City requiring construction 
of improvements in conjunction with the subdivision of land. 

D. Pursuant to Section and the applicable provisions of the Map Act, Developer and 
City enter into this Agreement for the timely construction and completion of the public 
improvements and the furnishing of the security therefor, acceptable to the City Engineer and 
City Attorney, for Colma Estates  Subdivision. 

E. Developer’s execution of this Agreement and the provision of the security are 
made in consideration of City’s approval of the final map for Colma Estates  Subdivision. 

 
III. TERMS. 

1.0 Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until all three of 
the following conditions are satisfied:  (a) Developer  provides City with security of the type and 
in the amounts required by this Agreement; (b) Developer executes and  records this Agreement 
in the Recorder’s Office of the COUNTY of SAN MATEO; (c) the City Council of the City 
(“City Council”) approves the final map for Colma Estates  Subdivision and (d) Developer 



4   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

records the final map for Colma Estates  Subdivision in the Recorder’s Office of the County of 
SAN MATEO.  If the above described conditions are not satisfied, this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate without need of further action by either City or Developer, and 
Developer may not thereafter record the final map for Colma Estates  Subdivision. 

2.0 Public Improvements.  Developer shall construct or have constructed at its own 
cost, expense, and liability all improvements required by City as part of the approval of Colma 
Estates  Subdivision ,including, but not limited to, all grading, roads, paving, curbs and gutters, 
pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, drainage facilities, traffic controls, landscaping, 
street lights, and all other required facilities as shown in detail on the plans, profiles, and 
specifications which have been prepared by or on behalf of Developer for Colma Estates 
Subdivision (“Public Improvements”).  The Public Improvements are more specifically shown in 
Exhibit ”B,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Construction of 
the Public Improvements shall include any transitions and/or other incidental work deemed 
necessary for drainage or public safety.  The Developer shall be responsible for the replacement, 
relocation, or removal of any component of any irrigation water system in conflict with the 
construction or installation of the Public Improvements.  Such replacement, relocation, or 
removal shall be performed to the complete satisfaction of the City Engineer and the owner of 
such water system.  Developer further promises and agrees to provide all equipment, tools, 
materials, labor, tests, design work, and engineering services necessary or required by City to 
fully and adequately complete the Public Improvements. 

2.2 Permits; Notices; Utility Statements.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, obtain all necessary permits and licenses 
and give all necessary and incidental notices required for the lawful construction of the Public 
Improvements and performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.  Developer 
shall conduct the work in full compliance with the regulations, rules, and other requirements 
contained in any permit or license issued to Developer.  Prior to commencing any work, 
Developer shall file a written statement with the City Clerk and the City Engineer, signed by 
Developer and each utility which will provide utility service to the Property, attesting that 
Developer has made all deposits legally required by the utility for the extension and provision of 
utility service to the Property. 

2.3 Pre-approval of Plans and Specifications.  Developer is prohibited from 
commencing work on any Public Improvement until all plans and specifications for such Public 
Improvement have been submitted to and approved by the City Engineer, or his or her designee.  
Approval by the City Engineer shall not relieve Developer from ensuring that all Public 
Improvements conform with all other requirements and standards set forth in this Agreement. 

2.4 Quality of Work; Compliance With Laws and Codes.  The construction 
plans and specifications for the Public Improvements shall be prepared in accordance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, and other 
requirements.  The Public Improvements shall be completed in accordance with all approved 
maps, plans, specifications, standard drawings, and special amendments thereto on file with City, 
as well as all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, standards, 
and other requirements applicable at the time work is actually commenced. 



5   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

2.5 Standard of Performance.  Developer and its contractors, if any, shall 
perform all work required to construct the Public Improvements under this Agreement in a 
skillful and workmanlike manner, and consistent with the standards generally recognized as 
being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California.  Developer 
represents and maintains that it or its contractors shall be skilled in the professional calling 
necessary to perform the work.  Developer warrants that all of its employees and contractors 
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them, and that they 
shall have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally 
required to perform the work, and that such licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals shall 
be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. 

2.6 Alterations to Improvements.  The Public Improvements in Exhibit “B” 
are understood to be only a general designation of the work and improvements to be done, and 
not a binding description thereof.  All work shall be done and improvements made and 
completed as shown on approved plans and specifications, and any subsequent alterations 
thereto.  If during the course of construction and installation of the Public Improvements it is 
determined that the public interest requires alterations in the Public Improvements, Developer 
shall undertake such design and construction changes as may be reasonably required by City.  
Any and all alterations in the plans and specifications and the Public Improvements to be 
completed may be accomplished without giving prior notice thereof to Developer’s surety for 
this Agreement. 

3.0 Maintenance of Public Improvements and Landscaping.  City shall not be 
responsible or liable for the maintenance or care of the Public Improvements until City approves 
and accepts them.  City shall exercise no control over the Public Improvements until accepted by 
City.  Any use by any person of the Public Improvements, or any portion thereof, shall be at the 
sole and exclusive risk of the Developer at all times prior to City’s acceptance of the Public 
Improvements.  Developer shall maintain all the Public Improvements in a state of good repair 
until they are completed by Developer and approved and accepted by City, and until the security 
for the performance of this Agreement is released.  Maintenance shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, repair of pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, signals, parkways, water mains, and 
sewers; maintaining all landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to 
City; removal of debris from sewers and storm drains; and sweeping, repairing, and maintaining 
in good and safe condition all streets and street improvements.  It shall be Developer’s 
responsibility to initiate all maintenance work, but if it shall fail to do so, it shall promptly 
perform such maintenance work when notified to do so by City.  If Developer fails to properly 
prosecute its maintenance obligation under this section, City may do all work necessary for such 
maintenance and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of Developer and its surety under this 
Agreement.  City shall not be responsible or liable for any damages or injury of any nature in any 
way related to or caused by the Public Improvements or their condition prior to acceptance. 

4.0 Construction Schedule.  Unless extended pursuant to  Section 4.1 of this 
Agreement, Developer shall fully and adequately complete or have completed the Public 
Improvements within one (1) year of the effective date of this Agreement, unless extended 
pursuant to Section 4.1.   



6   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

4.1 Extensions.  City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, provide 
Developer with additional time within which to complete the Public Improvements.  It is 
understood that by providing the security required under Section 13.0 et seq. of this Agreement, 
Developer and its surety consent in advance to any extension of time as may be given by City to 
Developer, and waives any and all right to notice of such extension(s).  Developer’s acceptance 
of an extension of time granted by City shall constitute a waiver by Developer and its surety of 
all defense of laches, estoppel, statutes of limitations, and other limitations of action in any 
action or proceeding filed by City following the date on which the Public Improvements were to 
have been completed hereunder.  In addition, as consideration for granting such extension to 
Developer, City  reserves the right to review the provisions of this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, the construction standards, the cost estimates established by City, and the sufficiency 
of the improvement security provided by Developer, and to require adjustments thereto when 
warranted according to City’s reasonable discretion. 

4.2 Accrual of Limitations Period.  Any limitations period provided by law 
related to breach of this Agreement or the terms thereof shall not accrue until Developer has 
provided the City Engineer with written notice of Developer’s intent to abandon or otherwise not 
complete required or agreed upon Public Improvements. 

5.0 Grading.  Developer agrees that any and all grading done or to be done in 
conjunction with construction of the Public Improvements or development of Colma Estates  
Subdivision shall conform to all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and other 
requirements, including City’s grading regulations.  In order to prevent damage to the Public 
Improvements by improper drainage or other hazards, the grading shall be completed in 
accordance with the time schedule for completion of the Public Improvements established by this 
Agreement, and prior to City’s approval and acceptance of the Public Improvements and release 
of the Security as set forth in Section 13.0 et seq. of this Agreement. 

6.0 Utilities.  Developer shall provide utility services, including water, power, gas, 
and telephone service to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land within Colma Estates  Subdivision 
in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the regulations, schedules and fees of the utilities or agencies providing such 
services.  Except for commercial or industrial properties, Developer shall also provide cable 
television facilities to serve each parcel, lot, or unit of land in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, the 
requirements of the cable company possessing a valid franchise with City to provide such service 
within City’s jurisdictional limits.  All utilities shall be installed underground. 

7.0 Fees and Charges.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, expense, and liability, pay all 
fees, charges, and taxes arising out of construction of the Public Improvements, including, but 
not limited to, all plan check, design review, engineering, inspection, and other service fees, and 
any impact or connection fees established by City ordinance, resolution, regulation, or policy, or 
as established by City relative to Colma Estates  Subdivision.   

Developer shall provide for payment of all Town inspection and plan check charges 
associated with the installation of public and private improvements.  A cash deposit shall be 



7   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

made in accordance with the fee schedule against which the Town will assess its costs.  A refund 
or additional charge will be made at the conclusion of the construction. 

8.0 City Inspection of Public Improvements.  Developer shall, at its sole cost, 
expense, and liability, and at all times during construction of the Public Improvements, maintain 
reasonable and safe facilities and provide safe access for inspection by City of the Public 
Improvements and areas where construction of the Public Improvements is occurring or will 
occur. 

9.0 Default; Notice; Remedies. 

9.1 Notice.  If Developer neglects, refuses, or fails to fulfill or timely 
complete any obligation, term, or condition of this Agreement, or if City determines there is a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, regulation, code, standard, or other 
requirement, City may at any time thereafter declare Developer to be in default or violation of 
this Agreement and make written demand upon Developer or its surety, or both, to immediately 
remedy the default or violation (“Notice”).  Developer shall substantially commence the work 
required to remedy the default or violation within ten (10) days of the Notice.  If the default or 
violation constitutes an immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, City may 
provide the Notice verbally, and Developer shall substantially commence the required work 
within twenty-four (24) hours thereof.  Immediately upon City’s issuance of the Notice, 
Developer and its surety shall be liable to City for all costs of construction and installation of the 
Public Improvements and all other administrative costs expenses as provided for in Section 10.0 
of this Agreement. 

9.2 Failure to Remedy; City Action.  If the work required to remedy the 
noticed default or violation is not diligently prosecuted to a completion acceptable to City within 
the time frame contained in the Notice, City may complete all remaining work, arrange for the 
completion of all remaining work, and/or conduct such remedial activity as in its sole and 
absolute discretion it believes is required to remedy the default or violation.  All such work or 
remedial activity shall be at the sole and absolute cost, expense, and liability of Developer and its 
surety, without the necessity of giving any further notice to Developer or surety.  City’s right to 
take such actions shall in no way be limited by the fact that Developer or its surety may have 
constructed any, or none of the required or agreed upon Public Improvements at the time of 
City’s demand for performance.  In the event City elects to complete or arrange for completion 
of the remaining work and improvements, City may require all work by Developer or its surety 
to cease in order to allow adequate coordination by City.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
conditions precedent for reversion to acreage can be met and if the interests of City will not be 
prejudiced thereby, City may also process a reversion to acreage and thereafter recover from 
Developer or its surety the full cost and expense incurred. 

9.3 Other Remedies.  No action by City pursuant to Section 9.0 et seq. of this 
Agreement shall prohibit City from exercising any other right or pursuing any other legal or 
equitable remedy available under this Agreement or any federal, state, or local law.  City may 
exercise it rights and remedies independently or cumulatively, and City may pursue inconsistent 
remedies.  City may institute an action for damages, injunctive relief, or specific performance. 



8   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

10.0 Administrative Costs.  If Developer fails to construct and install all or any part of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement, or if Developer fails to 
comply with any other obligation contained herein, Developer and its surety shall be jointly and 
severally liable to City for all administrative expenses, fees, and costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in obtaining compliance with this Agreement or in processing 
any legal action or for any other remedies permitted by law. 

11.0 Acceptance of Improvements; As-Built or Record Drawings.  If the Public 
Improvements are properly completed by Developer and approved by the City Engineer, and if 
they comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, codes, 
standards, and other requirements, the City Council shall be authorized to accept the Public 
Improvements.  The City Council may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept fully completed 
portions of the Public Improvements prior to such time as all of the Public Improvements are 
complete, which shall not release or modify Developer’s obligation to complete the remainder of 
the Public Improvements within the time required by this Agreement.  Upon the total or partial 
acceptance of the Public Improvements by City, Developer shall file with the Recorder’s Office 
of the County of SAN MATEO a notice of completion for the accepted Public Improvements in 
accordance with California Civil Code section 3093, at which time the accepted Public 
Improvements shall become the sole and exclusive property of City without payment therefor.  If 
Colma Estates  Subdivision was approved and recorded as a single phase map, City shall not 
accept any one or more of the improvements until all of the Public Improvements are completed 
by Developer and approved by City.  Issuance by City of occupancy permits for any buildings or 
structures located on the Property shall not be construed in any manner to constitute City’s 
acceptance or approval of any Public Improvements.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, City may 
not accept any Public Improvements unless and until Developer provides one (1) set of “as-built” 
or record drawings or plans to the City Engineer for all such Public Improvements.  The 
drawings shall be certified and shall reflect the condition of the Public Improvements as 
constructed, with all changes incorporated therein. 

12.0 Warranty and Guarantee.  Developer hereby warrants and guarantees all Public 
Improvements against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished in the 
in a vigorous and thriving condition reasonably acceptable to City, for a period of one (1) year 
following completion of the work and acceptance by City (“Warranty”).  During the Warranty, 
Developer shall repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory portion 
of the Public Improvements, in accordance with the current ordinances, resolutions, regulations, 
codes, standards, or other requirements of City, and to the approval of the City Engineer.  All 
repairs, replacements, or reconstruction during the Warranty shall be at the sole cost, expense, 
and liability of Developer and its surety.  As to any Public Improvements which have been 
repaired, replaced, or reconstructed during the Warranty, Developer and its surety hereby agree 
to extend the Warranty for an additional one (1) year period following City’s acceptance of the 
repaired, replaced, or reconstructed Public Improvements.  Nothing herein shall relieve 
Developer from any other liability it may have under federal, state, or local law to repair, replace, 
or reconstruct any Public Improvement following expiration of the Warranty or any extension 
thereof.  Developer’s warranty obligation under this section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 



9   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

13.0 Security; Surety Bonds.  Prior to execution of this Agreement, Developer shall 
provide City with surety bonds in the amounts and under the terms set forth below (“Security”).  
The amount of the Security shall be based on the City Engineer’s approximation of the actual 
cost to construct the Public Improvements, including the replacement cost for all landscaping 
(“Estimated Costs”).  If City determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that the Estimated 
Costs have changed, Developer shall adjust the Security  in the amount requested by City.  
Developer’s compliance with this provision (Section 13.0 et seq.) shall in no way limit or modify 
Developer’s indemnification obligation provided in Section 16.0 of this Agreement. 

13.1 Performance Bond.  To guarantee the faithful performance of the Public 
Improvements and all the provisions of this Agreement, to protect City if Developer is in default 
as set forth in Section 8.0 et seq. of this Agreement, and to secure Developer’s one-year 
guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements, including the maintenance of all  
landscaping in a vigorous and thriving condition, Developer shall provide City a faithful 
performance bond in the amount of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000), which sum 
shall be not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated Costs.  The City Council 
may, in its sole and absolute discretion and upon recommendation of the City Engineer, partially 
release a portion or portions of the security provided under this section as the Public 
Improvements are accepted by City, provided that Developer is not in default on any provision of 
this Agreement or condition of approval for Colma Estates  Subdivision, and the total remaining 
security is not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Estimated Costs.  All security provided 
under this section shall be released at the end of the Warranty period, or any extension thereof as 
provided in Section 12 of this Agreement, provided that Developer is not in default on any 
provision of this Agreement or condition of approval for Colma Estates  Subdivision. 

13.2 Labor & Material Bond.  To secure payment to the contractors, 
subcontractors, laborers, material men, and other persons furnishing labor, materials, or 
equipment for performance of the Public Improvements and this Agreement, Developer shall 
provide City a labor and materials bond in the amount of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($200,000), which sum shall not be less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Estimated 
Costs.  The security provided under this section may be released by written authorization of the 
City Engineer after six (6) months from the date City accepts the final Public Improvements.  
The amount of such security shall be reduced by the total of all stop notice or mechanic’s lien 
claims of which City is aware, plus an amount equal to twenty percent (20%) of such claims for 
reimbursement of City’s anticipated administrative and legal expenses arising out of such claims. 

13.3 Additional Requirements.  The surety for any surety bonds provided as 
Security shall have a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VIII, shall be licensed to do 
business in California, and shall be satisfactory to City.  As part of the obligation secured by the 
Security and in addition to the face amount of the Security, the Developer or its surety shall 
secure the costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees and 
costs, incurred by City in enforcing the obligations of this Agreement.  The Developer and its 
surety stipulate and agree that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of 
this Agreement, the Public Improvements, or the plans and specifications for the Public 
Improvements shall in any way affect its obligation on the Security. 



10   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

13.4 Evidence and Incorporation of Security.  Evidence of the Security shall be 
provided on the forms set forth in Exhibit “C,” unless other forms are deemed acceptable by the 
City Engineer and the City Attorney, and when such forms are completed to the satisfaction of 
City, the forms and evidence of the Security shall be attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

14.0 Monument Security.  Prior to City’s execution of this Agreement, to guarantee 
payment to the engineer or surveyor for the setting of all subdivision boundaries, lot corners, and 
street centerline monuments for Colma Estates  Subdivision in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of City’s Municipal and/or Development Code (“Subdivision Monuments”), 
Developer shall deposit cash with City in the amount of $250 PER MONUMENT with 20 
monuments or Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000), which sum shall not be less than one hundred 
percent (100%) of the costs of setting the Subdivision Monuments as determined by the City 
Engineer.  Said cash deposit may be released by written authorization of the City Engineer after 
all required Subdivision Monuments are accepted by the City Engineer, City has received written 
acknowledgment of payment in full from the engineer or surveyor who set the Subdivision 
Monuments, and provided Developer is not in default of any provision of this Agreement or 
condition of approval for Colma Estates  Subdivision. 

15.0 Lien.  To secure the timely performance of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement, including those obligations for which security has been provided pursuant to 
Sections 13 et seq. and 14 of this Agreement, Developer hereby creates in favor of City a lien 
against all portions of the Property not dedicated to City or some other governmental agency for 
a public purpose.  As to Developer’s default on those obligations for which security has been 
provided pursuant to Sections 13 et seq. and 14 of this Agreement, City shall first attempt to 
collect against such security prior to exercising its rights as a contract lienholder under this 
section. 

16.0 Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, and agents from any and all actual or alleged claims, 
demands, causes of action, liability, loss, damage, or injury, to property or persons, including 
wrongful death, whether imposed by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, 
state, or local governmental body or agency, arising out of or incident to any acts, omissions, 
negligence, or willful misconduct of Developer, its personnel, employees, agents, or contractors 
in connection with or arising out of construction or maintenance of the Public Improvements, or 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, the payment 
of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, attorney’s fees, and related costs or expenses, 
and the reimbursement of City, its elected officials, officers, employees, and/or agents for all 
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them.  This indemnification excludes only such 
portion of any claim, demand, cause of action, liability, loss, damage, penalty, fine, or injury, to 
property or persons, including wrongful death, which is caused solely and exclusively by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Agency as determined by a court or administrative body of 
competent jurisdiction.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received 
by City, its elected officials, officers, employees, or agents. 



11   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

 16.1 Public Works Determination.  Developer has been alerted to the 
requirements of California Labor Code section 1770 et seq., including, without limitation S.B. 
975, which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other 
requirements if it is determined that this Agreement constitutes a public works contract.  It shall 
be the sole responsibility of Developer to determine whether to pay prevailing wages for any or 
all work required by this Agreement.  As a material part of this Agreement, Developer agrees to 
assume all risk of liability arising from any decision not to pay prevailing wages for work 
required by this Agreement. 

17.0 Insurance. 

17.1 Types; Amounts.  Developer shall procure and maintain, and shall require 
its contractors to procure and maintain, during construction of any Public Improvement pursuant 
to this Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts described below (“Required 
Insurance”).  If any of the Required Insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such insurance 
shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two times the specified occurrence 
limit. 

17.1.1 General Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall procure and 
maintain occurrence version general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and 
property damage. 

17.1.2 Business Automobile Liability.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  Such insurance shall include 
coverage for the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading, or unloading of any vehicle 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the insured or for which the insured is responsible. 

17.1.3 Workers’ Compensation.  Developer and its contractors shall 
procure and maintain workers’ compensation insurance with limits as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California and employers’ liability insurance with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, at all times during which insured retains employees. 

17.1.4 Professional Liability.  For any consultant or other professional 
who will engineer or design the Public Improvements, liability insurance for errors and 
omissions with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, shall be procured and maintained 
for a period of five (5) years following completion of the Public Improvements.  Such insurance 
shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

17.2 Deductibles.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared 
to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either: (a) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (b) Developer and its contractors shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, 
claims, and administrative and defense expenses. 



12   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

17.3 Additional Insured; Separation of Insureds.  The Required Insurance shall 
name City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds 
with respect to work performed by or on behalf of Developer or its contractors, including 
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection therewith.  The Required Insurance shall 
contain standard separation of insureds provisions, and shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of its protection to City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

17.4 Primary Insurance; Waiver of  Subrogation.  The Required Insurance shall 
be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  All policies for the Required Insurance 
shall provide that the insurance company waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation 
against City in connection with any damage or harm covered by such policy. 

17.5 Certificates; Verification.  Developer and its contractors shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage for the Required 
Insurance.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by City before work pursuant to this Agreement 
can begin.  City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, at any time. 

17.6 Term; Cancellation Notice.  Developer and its contractors shall maintain 
the Required Insurance for the term of this Agreement and shall replace any certificate, policy, or 
endorsement which will expire prior to that date.  All policies shall be endorsed to provide that 
the Required Insurance shall not be suspended, voided, reduced, canceled, or allowed to expire 
except on 30 days prior written notice to City. 

17.7 Insurer Rating.  Unless approved in writing by City, all Required 
Insurance shall placed with insurers licensed to do business in the State of California and with a 
current A.M. Best rating of at least A:VIII. 

18.0 Signs and Advertising.  Developer understands and agrees to City’s ordinances, 
regulations, and requirements governing signs and advertising structures.  Developer hereby 
agrees with and consents to the removal by City of all signs or other advertising structures 
erected, placed, or situated in violation of any City ordinance, regulation, or other requirement.  
Removal shall be at the expense of Developer and its surety.  Developer and its surety shall 
indemnify and hold City free and harmless from any claim or demand arising out of or incident 
to signs, advertising structures, or their removal. 

19.0 Relationship Between the Parties.  The Parties hereby mutually agree that neither 
this Agreement, any map related to Colma Estates  Subdivision, nor any other related 
entitlement, permit, or approval issued by City for the Property shall operate to create the 
relationship of partnership, joint venture, or agency between City and Developer.  Developer’s 
contractors and subcontractors are exclusively and solely under the control and dominion of 
Developer.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to make Developer or its contractors an agent or 
contractor of City. 



13   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

20.0 General Provisions. 

20.1 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Each Party warrants that the individuals 
who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and authority make this Agreement 
and bind each respective Party. 

20.2 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate, or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

20.3 Construction; References; Captions.  It being agreed the Parties or their 
agents have participated in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement 
shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  
Any term referencing time, days, or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and 
not work days.  All references to Developer include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors of Developer, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content, or intent of this Agreement. 

20.4 Notices.  All notices, demands, invoices, and written communications 
shall be in writing and delivered to the following addresses or such other addresses as the Parties 
may designate by written notice: 

TOWN OF COLMA   DEVELOPER: 
1198 El Camino Real    _________________________________ 
COLMA, CA  94014    ________________________________ 

       Attn:                                          
       _________________________________ 

      _________________________________ 
      _________________________________ 
      Attn:_____________________________ 

Depending upon the method of transmittal, notice shall be deemed received as follows:  by 
facsimile, as of the date and time sent; by messenger, as of the date delivered; and by U.S. Mail 
first class postage prepaid, as of 72 hours after deposit in the U.S. Mail. 

20.5 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or amendment 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

20.6 Waiver.  City’s failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision 
of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege provided herein, or City’s waiver of any 
breach of this Agreement, shall not relieve Developer of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement, whether of the same or similar type.  The foregoing shall be true whether City’s 
actions are intentional or unintentional.  Developer agrees to waive, as a defense, counterclaim or 
set off, any and all defects, irregularities or deficiencies in the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement, as well as the laws, rules, 



14   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

regulations, ordinances or resolutions of City with regards to the authorization, execution or 
performance of the Public Improvements or this Agreement. 

20.7 Assignment or Transfer of Agreement.  Developer shall not assign, 
hypothecate, or transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest 
herein without prior written consent of City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and 
any assignee, hypothecatee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation, or transfer.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
City’s written consent, any assignment, hypothecation, or transfer shall not release or discharge 
Developer from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

20.8 Binding Effect.  Each and all of the covenants and conditions shall be 
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their successors, heirs, personal 
representatives, or assigns.  This section shall not be construed as an authorization for any Party 
to assign any right or obligation. 

20.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

20.10 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

20.11 Consent to Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any legal action or 
proceeding brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, or which in any way arises out of the 
Parties’ activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, shall be filed and prosecuted in the 
appropriate California State Court in the County of SAN MATEO, California.  Each Party 
waives the benefit of any provision of state or federal law providing for a change of venue to any 
other court or jurisdiction including, without limitation, a change of venue based on the fact that 
a governmental entity is a party to the action or proceeding, or that a federal right or question is 
involved or alleged to be involved in the action or proceeding.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing waiver, Developer expressly waives any right to have venue transferred pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

20.12 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any arbitration, lawsuit, or other legal action 
or proceeding is brought by one Party against the other Party in connection with this Agreement 
or the Property, the prevailing party, whether by final judgment or arbitration award, shall be 
entitled to and recover from the other party all costs and expenses incurred by the prevailing 
party, including actual attorneys’ fees (“Costs”).  Any judgment, order, or award entered in such 
legal action or proceeding shall contain a specific provision providing for the recovery of Costs, 
which shall include, without limitation, attorneys’ and experts’ fees, costs and expenses incurred 
in the following: (a) post judgment motions and appeals, (b) contempt proceedings, (c) 
garnishment, levy, and debtor and third party examination, (d) discovery, and (e) bankruptcy 
litigation.  This section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 



15   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

20.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals, 
which taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

TOWN OF COLMA     B STREET COLMA LLC. 

By: ___________________________  By: _____________________________ 
(signature)           (signature) 

___________________________   _____________________________ 
(print name)           (print name) 

City Manager      _____________________________ 
Town of Colma                (title) 

ATTEST: 

By: ___________________________  By: _____________________________ 
(signature)           (signature) 

___________________________   _____________________________ 
(print name)           (print name) 

City Clerk      _____________________________ 
Town of Colma                (title) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ___________________________   
(signature)          

___________________________    
(print name)       

City Attorney       
Town of Colma       

 

 

 

NOTE: DEVELOPER’S SIGNATURES SHALL BE DULY NOTARIZED, AND 
APPROPRIATE ATTESTATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED AS MAY BE 
REQUIRED BY THE BYLAWS, ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, OR 
OTHER  RULES OR REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO DEVELOPER’S 
BUSINESS ENTITY. 



16   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER: 
∼ Individual(s) 
∼ Corporate______________________ 
    Officer(s)______________________ 
∼ Partner(s) 
∼ Attorney-in-Fact 
∼ Trustee(s) 
∼ Subscribing Witness 
∼ Guardian/Conservator 
∼ Other__________________________ 
 
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES) 
______________________________________ 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  } 
} 

COUNTY OF _________________ } 

 
On _________________________________, 200_, before me, 
__________________________________, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 
                                                                                                          , ∼  personally known to me 
OR ∼ proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

_______________________________________ 
Signature of Notary 



17   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

 
CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER: 
∼ Individual(s) 
∼ Corporate______________________ 
    Officer(s)______________________ 
∼ Partner(s) 
∼ Attorney-in-Fact 
∼ Trustee(s) 
∼ Subscribing Witness 
∼ Guardian/Conservator 
∼ Other__________________________ 
 
SIGNER IS REPRESENTING: 
NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES) 
______________________________________ 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  } 
} 

COUNTY OF _________________ } 

 
On _________________________________, 200_, before me, 
__________________________________, the undersigned notary public, personally appeared 
                                                                                                          , ∼  personally known to me 
OR ∼ proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

_______________________________________ 
Signature of Notary 



 

1 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

COLMA ESTATES  SUBDIVISION 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lots 4, 5, 6 and the easterly 45’, front and rear of Lot 12 , Block 32 of that certain map entitled 
“City Addition Homestead” filed in Book D of Maps at Page 10, San Mateo County Records. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

EXHIBIT “B” 

LIST OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

COLMA ESTATES  SUBDIVISION 

1. PG&E GAS, PG&E ELECTRIC, COMCAST, AT&T, WATER, SEWER, SIDEWALK, 
CURB AND GUTTER, DRIVEWAYS, PAVERS IN STREET AND SIDEWALK, 
STREET LIGHTS, STREET TREES AND LANDSCAPING PER THE ATTACHED 
CIVIL IMPROVEMENT PLANS DATED 11/7/16 

 

 



 

 C-1 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

EXHIBIT “C” 

SURETY BONDS AND OTHER SECURITY 

COLMA ESTATES  SUBDIVISION 

As evidence of understanding the provisions contained in this Agreement, and of the Developer’s 
intent to comply with same, the Developer has submitted the below described security in the 
amounts required by this Agreement, and has affixed the appropriate signatures thereto: 

PERFORMANCE BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $200,000 
Surety: _______________________________________ 
Attorney-in-fact: ________________________________ 
Address: ______________________________________ 
______________________________________________ 
______________________________________________ 

MATERIAL AND LABOR BOND PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $200,000 
Surety: _______________________________________ 
Attorney-in-fact: ________________________________ 
Address: ______________________________________ 
______________________________________________ 
______________________________________________ 

CASH MONUMENT SECURITY: $5,000 
Amount deposited per Cash Receipt No. _______________   Date: _________________ 



 

 C-2 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

BOND NO. ___________________ 
INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 

SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 

TOWN OF COLMA 

COLMA ESTATES  SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS the Town of COLMA, California (“City”) and 
___________________ _________________________________________ (“Principal”), have 
executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the furnishing all labor, 
materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, roads, paving, curbs and 
gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, drainage facilities, traffic controls, 
landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities for Colma Estates  Subdivision (“Public 
Improvements”); 

WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Agreement for Completion of Pubic Improvements dated 
_______________________, ________ (“Improvement Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, Principal is required by the Improvement Agreement to provide a 
good and sufficient bond for performance of the Improvement Agreement, and to guarantee and 
warranty the Public Improvements constructed thereunder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and  ______________________________ 
(“Surety”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
______________________, and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State 
of California, are held and firmly bound unto City in the sum of _____________ dollars 
($___________________), said sum being not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total 
cost of the Public Improvements as set forth in the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, 
our heirs, executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 
these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such, that if Principal, his or its 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, 
and well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, agreements, guarantees, and 
warranties in the Improvement Agreement and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, 
to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified and in all respects 
according to their intent and meaning, and to indemnify and save harmless City, its officers, 



 

 C-3 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

employees, and agents, as stipulated in the Improvement Agreement, then this obligation shall 
become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be 
taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered. 

Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension 
of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, 
profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed 
thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice 
of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 

This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the 
Government Code of California as security for performance of the Improvement Agreement and 
security for the one-year guarantee and warranty of the Public Improvements. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its 
duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _______________________, this _____ day of 
_______________, ______. 

________________________________ 
 _________________________________ 

Principal     Surety 

By: ___________________________ By:   ___________________________ 
President     Attorney-in-Fact 
___________________________  ___________________________ 

(print name)       (print name) 

NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 



 

 C-4 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

 
BOND NO. ___________________ 

INITIAL PREMIUM:  ___________________ 
SUBJECT TO RENEWAL 

TOWN OF  COLMA 

COLMA ESTATES SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS 

LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS the Town of COLMA, California (“City”) and 
___________________ ______________________________________ (“Principal”), have 
executed an agreement for work consisting of, but not limited to, the furnishing all labor, 
materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidentals for all grading, roads, paving, curbs and 
gutters, pathways, storm drains, sanitary sewers, utilities, drainage facilities, traffic controls, 
landscaping, street lights, and all other required facilities for Colma Estates  Subdivision (“Public 
Improvements”); 

WHEREAS, the Public Improvements to be performed by Principal are more 
particularly set forth in that certain Agreement for Completion of Pubic Improvements dated 
_______________________, ________ (“Improvement Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and incorporated 
herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with the 
Improvement Agreement providing that if Principal or any of its subcontractors shall fail to pay 
for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, or terms used in, upon, for, or about the 
performance of the Public Improvements, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or 
for amounts due under the provisions of Title 15 (commencing with section 3082) of Part 4 of 
Division 3 of the California Civil Code, with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety on 
this bond will pay the same together with a reasonable attorney’s fee in case suit is brought on 
the bond. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Principal and _________________________ (“Surety”), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________________, 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and 
firmly bound unto City and to any and all material men, persons, companies or corporations 
furnishing materials, provisions, and other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance 
of the Public Improvements, and all persons, companies or corporations renting or hiring teams, 
or implements or machinery, for or contributing to the Public Improvements to be done, and all 
persons performing work or labor upon the same and all persons supplying both work and 



 

 C-5 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

materials as aforesaid excepting the Principal, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS, 
($______________), said sum being not less than 100% of the total cost of the Public 
Improvements under the terms of the Improvement Agreement, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors and administrators, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 
presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Principal, his or 
its subcontractors, heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay for 
any materials, provisions, or other supplies or machinery used in, upon, for or about the 
performance of the Public Improvements, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or fail to pay 
any of the persons named in California Civil Code Section 3181, or amounts due under the 
Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed by any such claimant, 
or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment 
Development Department from the wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors 
pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work and 
labor, and all other applicable laws of the State of California and rules and regulations of its 
agencies, then said Surety will pay the same in or to an amount not exceeding the sum specified 
herein. 

As part of the obligation secured hereby, and in addition to the face amount 
specified therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be 
taxed as costs and included in any judgment rendered. 

This bond is executed and filed to comply with Section 66499 et seq. of the 
California Government Code as security for payment to contractors, subcontractors, and persons 
furnishing labor, materials, or equipment for construction of the Public Improvements or 
performance of the Improvement Agreement.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that 
this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to 
file claims under Title 15 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the 
California Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought 
upon this bond. 

Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension 
of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Improvement Agreement, or to any plans, 
profiles, and specifications related thereto, or to the Public Improvements to be constructed 
thereunder, shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice 
of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition. 



 

 C-6 BBK:   
 
25977.00100\29375534.1  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the seal and signature of the Principal is hereto 
affixed, and the corporate seal and the name of the Surety is hereto affixed and attested by its 
duly authorized Attorney-in-Fact at _____________________, this _____ day of 
_______________, ______. 

________________________________  __________________________ 
Principal      Surety 

By: ___________________________ By:   ___________________________ 
President     Attorney-in-Fact 

___________________________  ___________________________ 
(print name)       (print name) 

NOTE: APPROPRIATE NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION 
BY PRINCIPAL AND SURETY, AND A COPY OF THE POWER OF 
ATTORNEY TO LOCAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BONDING 
COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report  Page 1 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Kathleen Gallagher, Sustainability Programs Manager 
Michael Laughlin, City Planner 
Lori Burns, Human Resources Manager 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016 

SUBJECT: Climate Action Plan Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a 

MOTION TO ACCEPT THE CLIMATE ACTION PLAN (CAP) PROGRESS REPORT. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report provides the Town’s annual progress on the CAP and the implementation of 
sustainability programs. A notable achievement in 2016 was the Town receiving the Beacon 
Spotlight Award for sustainability excellence. In addition to ongoing work with residents and 
businesses, a key achievement was the transition to the new franchise agreement with 
upgraded recycling, organics and garbage collection services, enhanced household hazardous 
waste collection and improved recycling technical assistance for businesses. A new irrigation 
efficiency program for our cemeteries was implemented by staff in collaboration with the 
Resource Conservation District of San Mateo County. Partnerships with the Resource 
Conservation District, PG&E/Ecology Action and our residents and businesses continue to play 
an important role in successful sustainability programs. Certificates of achievement to residents 
and business leaders who have taken action to reduce their carbon footprints will be recognized 
at the meeting.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Resources approved in the 2016-17 budget are used to implement CAP projects. As part of the 
sustainability work and CAP implementation conservation strategies are integrated into Town 
operations and capital improvement projects, usually with projected long term cost savings 
associated with reduced energy and water consumption. In addition, the City Council allocated 
$2,000.00 in the 2016-2017 FY for the residential water rebate program.  

Item #8



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 2 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

BACKGROUND 

The CAP guides the Town’s actions for greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets established 
under State Assembly Bill 321. Also, the CAP allows the Town to focus its sustainability program 
actions and quantify the results.  To confirm that the Town is on track to meets it GHG 
reduction targets, Colma completed a Community Greenhouse Gas Inventory Report2 which 
confirmed that the Town is on target to meet reduction targets. The 2013 Community 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Report detailed GHG reductions of 18.2% from the 2005 baseline to 
2013. This significant reduction takes the Town close to its goal, which is 20% by 2020 
reduction goal.  

On September 8, 2016, the Governor signed Senate Bill 32 which requires California to reduce 
GHG emissions to 40% below 1990 levels by the year 2030.  By continuing to look for 
opportunities for GHG reductions in our commercial, residential and municipal sectors, the Town 
hopes to meet this new goal.  

ANALYSIS 

A significant accomplishment for the Town this year was the receipt of these Beacon Awards: 
 

 2016 Gold Beacon Award (Colma was the only jurisdiction to receive the Gold 
2016 Beacon Award; the 7 other jurisdictions in this category received Silver) 

 Agency GHG Reductions: Platinum level, 22%  
 Agency Natural Gas Savings: Platinum level, 22% reductions 
 Agency Energy Savings: Platinum level, 29% 
 Community GHG Reductions: Gold level, 18% reductions 
 Sustainability Best Practices: Platinum level 

 
Staff continues to participate in monthly meetings regarding implementation of programs; staff 
also attends the San Mateo County Regionally Integrated Climate Action Plan (RICAPS) group, 
collaborates with the Resource Conservation District of San Mateo County, San Mateo County 
Energy Watch, CalRecycle, CalWater, CCE, Joint Venture Silicon Valley’s Climate Protection Task 
Force to discuss and gain knowledge of other potential programs for Colma.  
The Town continues to make significant progress towards increasing sustainability.   

Below is a list of the progress made in 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                           
1 AB 32 (California’s Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006), requires statewide greenhouse gases (GHGs) 
to be reduced 15% below current levels (as measured in 2005), by the year 2020. 
2 Prepared by DNV GL through the RICAPS program of the City/County Association of Governments of 
San Mateo County. 



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 3 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

2016 CAP Progress Highlights 
 
CAP Program 2016 Progress 

 
Energy Efficiency, Water Conservation and Green Building 
 
Residential Energy and Water Efficiency  • Installation of three solar residential 

systems 
• Continued water rebate program, with 3 

rebates given (3 toilets, 2 dishwashers) 
• Added Open PACE to list of PACE 

providers in Colma 
• Promoted sustainability and distributed 

materials at National Night Out 
• Expanded residential water rebate 

program  
• Recognized one residential water 

efficient landscaping project 
• Promoted and participated in the US 

Mayors Water Conservation Challenge 
for the third consecutive year, building 
momentum and awareness 

• Included sustainability information in 
LiveWire (Community Newsletter) 

 
  

Commercial Energy and Water Efficiency  • Completed water irrigation evaluations 
for 5 of the largest cemeteries in 
collaboration with the Resource 
Conservation District of San Mateo 
County (RCD) to provide technical 
assistance and recommendations for 
water and energy savings. Continued to 
work with RCD to identify grants to assist 
the cemeteries with upgrades. 

• Hosted a well attended meeting for 
cemetery managers about how to 
participate in new programs for water 
efficiency  

• Ongoing meetings with RCD to consider 
grant opportunities to assist in funding 
water conservation projects 

• Participated in Task Force through 
several meetings for Recycled Water 
Project  

• Installation of one commercial solar 
system (Target)  

• Installation of electric vehicle charging at 



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 4 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

Kohl’s 
• Worked with PG&E and Ecology Action to 

provide energy audits to large businesses 
(including Peninsula Reflections) 

• Expanded outreach and education to 
businesses about energy savings 
opportunities with a special focus to 
assist new businesses to Colma 

• Heavily promoted the Energy Watch 
energy assessment and retrofit program 
to small businesses 

• Connected Ecology Action staff to new 
businesses in Colma.   

Planning, Land Use and Increased Opportunities for Alternative Transportation 
Increase bicycle lanes and implement 
walkability and bicycling in new projects and 
renovations 

• Hosted break station for Bike to Work 
day 

• Continued Section 132 pre-tax 
transportation cost program 

• Recipient of Kaiser Permanente 
Sustainability grant for purchase and 
installation of bick rack/repair station at 
Community Center 

 
Update the General Plan to be consistent 
with the CAP 

• General Plan update in process, Housing 
Element adopted in January 2015, which 
has policies to place new housing close 
to transit  

Recycling and Waste Reduction 
Increase recycling and waste diversion to 
meet 80% diversion rate 

• Completed the transition to new 
franchise agreement to provide upgraded 
recycling, organics and garbage 
collection services, enhanced household 
hazardous waste collection and improved 
recycling technical assistance for 
businesses. Awarded franchise to 
Republic Services and continued 
collaboration on the Transition Plan, 
Commercial Recycling Plan and 
Operations Plan. Staff holds quarterly 
meetings (or more frequently) with 
Republic staff.  

• Hosted residential and business outreach 
events to get feedback on the new 
expanded recycling and organics 
collection 

• Managed transition and held several 
meetings with businesses to ensure 
services were sufficient  



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 5 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

• Partnered with Allied Waste of Daly City, 
South San Francisco Scavengers and 
Saint Vincent de Paul to conduct the 
Town Clean-Up Day. Forty-three 
volunteers and Town staff picked-up 
trash and recyclable items while walking 
various areas of Town  

• Met with hauler to discuss meeting the 
requirements of AB 341, SB 1016 and 
other recycling requirements 

• Completed AB 939/AB 341 Compliance 
Reporting for CalRecycle. Managed 
diversion reporting to ensure compliance. 
Completed on site tours with several 
businesses with CalRecycle staff.  

• Completed technical assistance at 
Community Center, Sterling, Police Dept, 
Town Hall/PW walkthrough for upgrading 
recycling and organics collection program 
and use of internal recycling containers.  

• Successful Town-wide Clean-Up and 
Garage Sale 

• Annual Colma Creek Clean-Up 
• Teen participation in Coastal Clean-Up 

Day 
 

Implement single use bag ban and 
polystyrene ban 

• Supported county-wide plastic bag 
ordinance bag fee increased to .25 
effective January 1, 2015 

• Municipal Programs 
Develop and implement a Town 
Sustainability Policy   

• Continued purchasing of 30% recycled 
personal hygiene paper products 

• Ongoing evaluation of products and 
consideration of shared purchasing 
where feasible 
 

Promote commute alternatives for Town 
employees and the public 

• Provided a “Ride Your Bike To Work” 
Break Station and encouraged the Great 
Race Challenge in conjunction with 
Commute.org and Peninsula Traffic 
Congestion Relief Alliance 

• Town staff continues to promote pre-tax 
commuter benefits 

 
Replace 100% street, signal, park and 
parking lot lighting with energy efficient 
lighting 

• Completed energy efficient lighting 
upgrades in all facilities using PG&E on-
bill financing (OBF) 



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 6 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

Adopt Green Building Ordinance for new 
Town-sponsored projects and major 
renovations. 

• LEED Silver equivalency features will be 
required in Town Hall Remodel plans 
 

Expand tree planting on public properties 
and use native and drought tolerant 
trees/plantings 

• Continued practice of not  watering 
medians 
 

Establish method to integrate CAP measures 
into Town projects and day-to-day decisions.  

• Re-energized Police Bike patrol 
• Replaced one Police vehicle with more 

fuel efficient model 
• Purchase of hybrid Town pool car 
• Received BAAQMD grant to supplement 

purchase of electric motorcycle 
Solar and Renewable Energy Installations 

 

• Installation of one commercial solar 
system for Target; and three residential 
systems 

 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
Increasing sustainability is consistent with the Council value of vision in considering the 
broader regional and statewide implications of the Town’s decisions and issues.  

Sustainability Impact 

As described in this report, the benefits of CAP implementation are to (1) reduce the Town’s 
carbon footprint, (2) increase the Town’s quality of life for residents, businesses and visitors 
and (3) save energy, water and money and reduce waste to landfill. 
 
Alternatives 

The Council could not accept the status update and could, instead, direct Staff to bring back 
additional information on CAP programs. 

CONCLUSION 

The Town’s Leadership Team and Sustainability Group will continue to work on implementing 
programs that will further climate action goals. The plans for 2017 include (1) continue 
providing technical assistance to cemeteries to assist them in reducing energy and water waste, 
and reduce operational costs; (2) explore grant potential to assist in funding capital costs and 
other costs in conjunction with Resource Conservation District’s recommendations for reducing 
water and energy waste; (3) expand recycling and organics collection (particularly for 
businesses) through the new recycling programs provided by Republic; (4) participate in the 
recycled water project; (5) Explore the impact of a centralized purchasing system for municipal 
operations to ensure compliance with sustainability policy; (6) continue employee commuter 
benefits program; (7) collaborate with Ecology Action and promote PACE financing options for 
businesses; (8) look for efficiency in Town Hall plan;  (9) carefully monitor and implement new 
California Green Building Code; and (10) Explore carbon sequestration potential for Colma.  



Staff Report re: CAP Progress Report   Page 7 of 7 
December 14,  2016 

 
ATTACHMENT 
 

A. Climate Action Program Implemenation Chronology 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Colma 
Climate Action Plan Implementation Chronology 

The following list provides the detail on specific programs implemented each year. City Council’s 
commitment to sustainability was established prior to the development of a formal Climate 
Action Plan and the current focus on reducing local greenhouse gas emissions.   The three 
largest contributors to greenhouse gas emissions are (1) energy (commercial energy use is the 
majority of GHG (2) solid waste and (3) transportation.  Under Council’s leadership, the Town 
has been conducting business in a way that considers natural resources and environmental 
impacts for many years.  Town policies, operations and projects reflect a genuine concern for 
the health of our community and planet.  

The following programs illustrate the Town’s climate protection efforts to ensure that future 
generations and natural ecosystems are stable and even thrive. 

2016 

• Completed water irrigation evaluations for 5 of the largest cemeteries in collaboration
with the Resource Conservation District of San Mateo County (RCD) to provide technical
assistance and recommendations for water and energy savings. Continued to work with
RCD to identify grants to assist the cemeteries with upgrades.

• Received 5 Beacon Spotlight Awards:

• Gold Level Award

• Platinum Level Award for 22 percent Agency Greenhouse Gas Reductions

• Platinum Level Award for 29 percent Energy Savings

• Platinum Level Award for 22 percent Natural Gas Savings

• Platinum Level Award in Sustainability Best Practices

• Received Kaiser Permanente Sustainability grant to purchase and install a bike
rack/repair station at the Colma Community Center

• Completed the transition to new franchise agreement to provide upgraded recycling,
organics and garbage collection services, enhanced household hazardous waste
collection and improved recycling technical assistance for businesses. Awarded franchise
to Republic Services and continued collaboration on the Transition Plan, Commercial
Recycling Plan and Operations Plan. Staff holds quarterly meetings (or more frequently)
with Republic staff.

• Hosted residential and business outreach events to get feedback on the new expanded
recycling and organics collection

• Installation of electric vehicle charging at Kohl’s

• Installation of one commercial solar system (Target) and three residential systems

Attachment A



• Continued water rebate program, with 3 rebates given (3 toilets, 2 dishwashers) 
  

• Added Open PACE to list of PACE providers in Colma 
 
 

• Participated in US Mayors Water Conservation Challenge 
 

• Worked with PG&E and Ecology Action to provide energy audits to large businesses 
(including Peninsula Reflections) 
 

• Continued work with CalWater on recycled water system in Colma 
 

• Hosted successful Town-wide Clean-Up and Garage Sale 
 

• Participated in Annual Colma Creek Clean-Up 
 

• Completed 2016 Municipal Operations GHG Inventory 
 

• Used compostable paper products at annual town picnic; distributed reusable water 
bottles  
 

• Hosted break station for Bike to Work day 
 

• Continued Section 132 pre-tax transportation cost program 
 

• Continued irrigation reductions on Town medians 
 

• Purchased an energy efficient van for the Recreation department to reduce the need for 
renting buses  
 

• Coordinated teen participation in Coastal Clean-Up Day 
 
 

2015 
 

• PD purchased energy efficient car to replace a less efficient Crown Victoria 
 

• Resident(s?) replaced lawn with efficient landscaping receiving technical assistance and 
rebate from CalWater 

 
• Town began offering employees Pre-tax Commuter benefits 

 
• Participated in US Mayors Water Conservation Challenge 

 
• Town installed water efficient demonstration garden 

 
• Purchased hybrid Town pool car 

 



• Stopped watering medians 
 

• Received BAAQMD grant to supplement purchase of electric motorcycle 
 

• Completed energy efficient lighting upgrades in all facilities using PG&E OBF 
 

• Received Beacon Spotlight Awards for Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Agency 
Energy Savings, Natural Gas Savings, and Sustainability Best Practices 

 
• Released RFP for waste hauling services that include enhanced recycling opportunities 

including organic collection 
 

• Launched a $500 maximum rebate program for residential water efficient upgrades 
 

• Heavily promoted the Energy Watch energy assessment and retrofit program to small 
businesses 

 
• Met with Cemetery Managers to provide education on the new state water efficiency 

landscape ordinance and to discuss future opportunities for water and energy 
conservation 

 
• Facilitated meeting between PG&E for energy audit and energy upgrades at Lucky 

Chances 
 

• Worked with County on the Community Choice Energy program 
 

• Presented to City Council PACE Financing resolution  
 

• Adopted a small rooftop solar energy system ordinance 
 
2014 

 
• Installed 1.3 miles of bike lanes on Mission Road reducing GHG by 2 metric tons 

 
• Participated in US Mayors Water Conservation Challenge 

 
• Hosted a CalWater sustainable landscaping workshop 

 
• Began the Hillside Blvd. improvement project which included; new bike lanes, LED street 

lighting, sidewalk improvement and the installation of the Town’s first public works rain 
gardens. 

 
• Led the Town’s annual Town-wide Clean-Up and Garage Sale Day. 

 
• Managed a Colma Creek Clean-Up project. 

 
• Initiated a Town-wide irrigation study. 

 



• Staffed a table to reach out to residents regarding conservation efforts at home at 
National Night Out Event. 

 
• Re-energized Police Bike Patrol. 

 
• Replaced three police vehicles with more fuel efficient models. 

 
• Retrofitted remaining Town-owned street lights with LED technology using PG&E’s on 

bill financing. 
 

• Commuter Benefits Orientation Breakfast 
 

• Recycled content on personal hygiene paper products 
 

• Plastic Bag Ordinance – bag fee increasing to .25 
 

• Sustainability Policy – personal hygiene products will have 30% recycle content 
 

• Parking lot lighting retrofitted – both shopping centers and many auto dealerships 
 

• Holy Cross – 75 new trees, bottles water replaced with filtered, energy efficient lighting 
retrofit saving up to 7k per year 

 
• Recognized 9 commercial energy efficient retrofit projects, 2 residential solar 

installations, 4 residential drought tolerant landscape projects, 3 residential window 
replacement projects and one commercial sustainable operations commendation 

 
• Installation of two Volta electric vehicle charging stations at Serra Center.  

 
• PD’s October installation of automated reporting system reduced printing of police 

reports by 60%. 
 
2013 
 

• Retrofitted a total of 63 exterior bollard fixtures in City Hall, Creekside Villas and Hillside 
Blvd Museum and Community Center parking lots 

 
• Added stewardship to employee evaluations   

 
• Adopted a Sustainability Policy to encourage staff to purchase recycled content materials 

(e.g. copy paper, legal pads, etc.) and utilize other green practices.  
 

• Implemented a Business Greening Program, developing working partnerships with San 
Mateo County Energy Watch Program, PG&E, CalWater, the Bay Area Water Supply and 
Conservation Agency (BAWSCA) and our local waste hauling franchises.  

 
• Added a new sustainability resource link to the Town’s website for the Towns Colma 

Green webpage. 



 
• Included sustainability information in the local monthly LiveWire publication and 

quarterly in the Town’s business newsletter “Colma Works.”  
 

• Capitalized on Chamber events where sustainable resourcing information can be 
presented to local businesses such as the major employer breakfast.  

 
• Held a workshop for Colma’s Auto Dealerships to provide dealerships with energy 

efficiency strategies unique to their business which included presentations from PG&E 
and Right Lights. 

 
• Conducted a waste/diversion audit with hauler at all Town facilities.   Several landfill 

receptacles were replaced with recycling containers and single stream recycling labels 
with added to all recycling containers. 

 
2012 
 

• Held a Bicycle Rodeo in partnership with Commute.org  to encourage a safe alternate to 
driving to school, work and shopping. 

 
• Introduced by reference the County of San Mateo’s polystyrene foodware ordinance and 

single use bag ordinance. 
 

• Completed 2010 government operations greenhouse gas inventory. 
 

• Passed “Complete Streets” resolution which requires deliberation of all modes of travel 
when public works projects are considered. 

 
• Replaced annuals with native plants in municipal landscaping whenever possible. 
• Offered composting at Town-sponsored events. 

 
• Created a Town-paid Sewer Cost Subsidy based on reduced water usage. 

 
• Offered “green” audits to local businesses.  Completed two to date. 

 
2011 
 

• Published the “Colma Green” page on the town website providing businesses and 
residents easy access to energy efficiency, water conservation and recycling information 
and up to date information on rebates and other programs. 

 
• Initiated a Water Conservation Outreach Campaign – Senior luncheon, Recreation Trips, 

Council Meeting, Target Nightout. 
 
2010 
 

• Re-establish Police Bicycle Patrol in Town shopping centers and neighborhoods. 
 



• Held the first annual Town-wide Clean-Up Day and Garage Sale which included 
dispatching volunteers to various sections of the Town for litter pick-up, no cost extra 
residential trash disposal, shredding services, e-waste and hazardous waste collection. 

 
• Participated in Commute.org’s Race for Clean Air, a campaign which encourages and 

rewards employees for exploring alternate modes of transportation when commuting.  
This has become an annual event. 

 
• Eliminated/restricted single-serve beverages at all Town sponsored functions 

 
• Retrofitted lighting in all Town facilities to energy efficient fixtures. 

 
• Required all events held in Town facilities to recycle. 

 
• Assessed Town-wide irrigation systems and made adjustments to timers and nozzles to 

reduce water usage.  Stopped irrigation on established trees. 
 

• Completed 2005 baseline greenhouse gas inventories for government operations and 
community. 

 
2009 
 

• Redesigned Town Website to reduce use of paper and allow remote access to important 
Town documents. 

 
• Revised annual Business Registration process to facilitate electronic filing and 

communication. 
 

• Greened the Annual Town Picnic by using all recycled or reusable serving wear, 
encouraged recycling, educated attendees on waste reduction and offered recreation 
activities that highlighted energy conservation. 

 
• Staffed an energizer station for the region’s Ride Your Bike to Work Day (now an annual 

event). 
 

• Launched a pilot program to compare and contrast energy efficient streetlights – Retrofit 
32 LED and 30 Induction lamps using Energy Efficiency Conservation Block Grant 
Program adopted by the California Energy Commission 

 
• Held a campaign to increase residential recycling campaign called Colma Can. 

 
2008 
 

• Passed a resolution committing to the U.S. Mayors’ Climate Protection Agreement, 
Sierra’s Club Cool Cities Program and the Silicon Valley Climate Protection Partnership. 

 
2005 
 



• Salvaged and replanted mature palm trees instead of discarding and purchasing new 
trees. 

 
• Made recycling available at of city offices and facilities. 

 
• Led the Town’s first annual Earth Day community event stressing conservation and 

sustainability. 
 
Previous 
 

• Installed brick pavers in the roadways instead of asphalt in residential streets, increasing 
permeability and reducing heat absorbtion. 

 
• Installed rubberized surfacing at all Town park playground area. 

 
• Utilized public transportation for community outings whenever possible. 

 
• Instituted annual Colma Creek clean-up. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re City Selection Committee  Page 1 of 2 
11/29/16 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016 

SUBJECT: Council of Cities and City Selection Committee 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following motion: 

MOTION CONFIRMING DESIGNATION OF THE MAYOR AS THE VOTING MEMBER FOR 
THE COUNCIL OF CITIES, DESIGNATING AN ALTERNATE VOTING MEMBER, AND 
GIVING THE VOTING MEMBER DISCRETION ON ANY AND ALL MATTERS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The San Mateo Council of Cities will meet on December 16, 2016 to elect its officers, to make 
appointments to certain Regional Boards, and to conduct other business. According to the 
Council’s bylaws, all Council Members from a city are participating members of the Council of 
Cities, but only the Mayor, or the Mayor’s alternate, is a voting member. By practice, the Mayors 
of each city are members of the City Selection Committee, which has been delegated the 
authority to make appointments to certain Regional Boards. 

This motion will confirm the designation of the Mayor as the voting member of the Council of 
Cities and its City Selection Committee, designate an alternate to the Mayor, and grant the 
voting member discretion in voting on any and all matters.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Colma City Council is a participant in the San Mateo County Council of Cities and 
the City Selection Committee. The Council of Cities meets once per month to discuss items of 
interest to the region and provide networking opportunities for elected officials from the cities 
of San Mateo County. The members of the San Mateo County Council of Cities are all of the 
elected officials from the cities in the County, as well as the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo 
County.  

Item #9



Staff Report re City Selection Committee   Page 2 of 2 
11/29/16 

The City Selection Committee meets several times per year, usually immediately before a 
Council of Cities business meeting, and elects representatives from among the group of 
interested elected officials to serve on County-wide committees and boards, such as the San 
Mateo County Transportation Authority (SMCTA), and the Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District Board. Only one designated representative from each city is on the City Selection 
Committee, usually the Mayor. The City Selection Committee meets for the sole purpose of 
voting for the elected officials who will serve on County-wide committees and to elect the 
officers to the Council of Cities for the upcoming year. 

ANALYSIS 
 
The bylaws of the San Mateo Council of Cities provides that each Council Member is a 
participating member of the Council, that each city shall have one vote, and that the Mayor, or 
an alternate designated by the city, is the voting member for that city.  
 
The proposed motion would confirm the designation of the Mayor as the Town’s voting 
representative to the City Selection Committee and would appoint an alternate as voting 
member in case of the Mayor’s absence. 
 
The proposed motion would also confirm that the voting member has the discretion to vote on 
any matter before the Council of Cities. The voting member may seek and hear input and 
opinions of fellow Council members, but is not bound to vote in accordance with any 
instructions from fellow council members. Attached to this staff report for discussion are a list of 
the vacant assignments and positions. 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
This recommendation is consistent with the Vision category from the Council’s adopted values 
from the Values-Based Code of Conduct. The Mayor will vote to select committee members and 
board representatives that may have a direct impact on regional issues that are of interest to 
the Town of Colma.  
 
Alternative  
 
The alternative to giving the Mayor discretion to vote at the City Selection Committee meeting 
is to require the Mayor to vote in a manner consistent with the directions of the City Council. 
While this alternative is technically feasible, it is not a workable alternative when there are 
several potential candidates or issues to be voted on. The more candidates or issues there are 
to be voted on, the more complicated and unworkable this alternative becomes. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the proposed motion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. List of Commission/Committee vacancies 
B. Letters of Interest 
C. Proxy Designation Form 



City Selection Committee Meeting 
December 16, 2016 

Commission/Committee Vacancies Seeking Appointment/Reappointment 

Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
All Cities 

1. Rick Bonilla, San Mateo

2. Wayne Lee, Millbrae

3. Carlos Romero, East Palo Alto

Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
All Cities 

1. Doug Kim, Belmont

2. Pradeep Gupta, South San Francisco

California Identification System 
(CAL-ID) 

NOT COMPENSATED  

2 seat available 
that will represent 
All Cities, except 
Daly City 

1. 

Housing and Community 
Development Committee 

NOT COMPENSATED 

2 seats available 
that will represent 
All Cities 

1. Janet Borgens, Redwood City

San Mateo County Transit 
District (SAMTRANS) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Southern Cities 

1. Jeffery Gee, Redwood City

San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Central Cities 

1. Maureen Freschet, San Mateo

2. Sam Hindi, Foster Cty

San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
Southern Cities 

1. Cameron Johnson, San Carlos

San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) 

COMPENSATED 

1 seat available 
that will represent 
All Cities 

1. Emily Beach, Burlingame

San Mateo County Council 
of Cities 2015 Officers Vacancies Seeking Appointment/Reappointment 

 Chairperson 1 seat 1. Liza Normandy, South San Francisco

 Vice Chairperson 1 seat 1. Mike O’Neill, Pacifica

Attachment A



 



Attachment B







 

City of East Palo Alto                                                                                                                                 Telephone Number: (650) 853-3100 
2415 University Avenue                                                                                                                                         Fax Number: (650) 853-3115 
East Palo Alto, CA 94303 

CITY OF EAST PALO ALTO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

November 30, 2016 

 

Re: Association of Bay Area Governments Appointment, City Selection Committee 

 

Honorable Mayors and Council Members: 

 

I write to seek your support for appointment to the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) city 

seat being vacated by Mary Ann Nihart.  As past Mayor of East Palo Alto, former vice-chair of CCAG, and 

as an active participant in Council of Cities meetings, I have grown to know and engage many of you in 

discussions of issues affecting our precious cities. I feel it is vitally important to listen and collectively 

arrive at decisions that affect our cities and the county, and if selected, I will bring this approach to my 

service on ABAG. 

 

My interest in serving on ABAG’s governing board stems from a deep commitment and faith in 

representative regional transportation planning coupled with appropriate land use, sound economic 

development policies, and a firm respect for the environment.  This commitment is derived from a true 

sense that as a diverse nine-county region we can and must cooperate and arrive at reasoned, rational 

decisions that will prepare our cities and the region to address the urban and rural growth challenges we 

face.  Without a comprehensive blueprint we can all agree on, we are exposed to even greater uncer-

tainty to maintain an economically vibrant and livable region for our children and grandchildren. 

I believe I am well prepared to serve on ABAG given my present three years of service on its Regional 

Planning Committee, its Housing, and Economic Development Sub-Committees, my educational 

background at Stanford and Harvard where I studied urban economics, urban planning, real estate 

finance, and transportation studies, and my professional background as an affordable housing developer 

and land use consultant.  As an affordable housing developer who has built housing throughout the Bay 

Area and the State, I am keenly aware of the need to balance housing affordability, growth, and 

transportation issues with both the environment and market forces.  

In addition, I served three and a half years as a member of the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission’s (MTC) advisory bodies.  During that time I fully acquainted myself with the structure and 

workings of the MTC, attending not just advisory committee meetings, but MTC sub-committee and 

 

Mayor Donna Rutherford 
Vice Mayor Larry Moody 
 
Council Members 
Ruben Abrica 
Lisa Gauthier 
Carlos Romero 

 
 



 

City of East Palo Alto                                                                                                                                 Telephone Number: (650) 853-3100 
2415 University Avenue                                                                                                                                         Fax Number: (650) 853-3115 
East Palo Alto, CA 94303 

MTC commissioner meetings.    It is vital that San Mateo County cities have someone at the table who 

can participate fully in the MTC/ABAG merger implementation process from the inception. This process 

is presently occurring between the two agencies and it is paramount that ABAG’s far more democratic 

and deliberative governance structure not be lost during this merger.   

 

I am keenly aware of the diversity among San Mateo County cities and of the numerous needs and 

sometimes-divergent concerns of our cities.  I have listened, learned, and struggled with the rest of you 

to find solutions and craft positions that address local and regional needs without acrimonious debate. 

 

I am by nature a deliberative and consultative person.  If selected to serve on ABAG, I will always bring 

issues affecting our county to the cities for discussion and debate.  Only through reasoned discourse, 

respectful of all positions, and openness to innovative and collaborative solutions can we be assured 

that we will meet the challenges posed by our need to grow sustainably.  

 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions concerning my candidacy.  I am always 

delighted to discuss issues of policy and implementation with any of you.  I may be reached at (650) 283-

2852 or by e-mail: cromero_ezln@yahoo.com. 

 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Carlos Romero, Councilmember 
City of East Palo Alto 
 

 

 

 











Page 1 of 4 
 

Mayor John D. Seybert 1017 MIDDLEFIELD ROAD 
Vice Mayor Ian Bain Redwood City, California 94063 
 Telephone (650) 780-7220 
Council Members FAX (650) 261-9102 
Alicia C. Aguirre www.redwoodcity.org 
Janet Borgens  
Jeffrey Gee  
Diane Howard  
Shelly Masur  
  
  
 
 
 
November 28, 2016 
 
 
 Re: City Selection Committee 
  SamTrans – Southern Judicial District Appointment 
 
 
Honorable Mayors, Council Members and Designees: 
 
 

It has been my honor to serve my first full term on the SamTrans Board of 
Directors representing the cities and unincorporated communities of San Mateo County 
on this important countywide transportation agency board.  I am writing to express my 
interest in being reappointed to the Southern Judicial District seat on the 
SamTrans Board of Directors. 
 
This appointment will be on the December 16, 2016 agenda of the San Mateo 
County Council of Cities when it meets that evening in Colma. 
 

SamTrans is an integral part of San Mateo County’s transportation and mobility 
system.  Our SamTrans bus and paratransit systems are often the only source of 
mobility for many of our county’s most vulnerable and geographically constrained 
residents.  Along with the District’s sister transit agencies such as Caltrain and BART, 
SamTrans provides commuters with the “last mile” connectively essential to keeping 
them out of their cars and not adding to our increasing traffic congestion issues.  The 
funding and viability of public transportation has a direct impact on the quality of life for 
all our residents and constituents. 
 

As a Director, and Past Chairman of the SamTrans Board, I have worked very 
hard to ensure that our communities and the region are working together to give 
residents reliable public transit choices which expand their mobility options for getting to 
work and around the County without the use of a car.  I also take pride in being 
available to the elected leaders and stakeholders from every community in the County 
and for a track record of leadership and decisions which have always been made with a 
countywide perspective.  Through my appointment to SamTrans, I also represent San 
Mateo County on the Joint-Powers Board (JPB) overseeing the operation of Caltrain 
and the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) overseeing the construction of the new 
Transbay Transportation Center in downtown San Francisco. 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Below is a snapshot of some of the highlights and accomplishments during my 

current term and an extended list is included as an attachment to this letter. 
 
SamTrans 

 Implementation the SamTrans Service Plan (SSP) – the first comprehensive 
countywide adjustment to bus schedule and routes. 

 Served as Chairman of the Board, and oversaw the multi-jurisdictional 
(SamTrans, SFMTA, VTA) recruitment effort for a new General Manager, 
resulting in the unanimous selection of Jim Hartnett. 

 Advocated for examining how the organization utilizes its real estate assets, 
especially with regards to potential workforce housing. 

 Supported the recent initiation of a study to examine public Express Bus Service 
on US 101 to reduce traffic congestion by getting commuters out of their cars. 

 
Caltrain 

 Supported the purchase of additional cars from LA Metro to increase capacity for 
both passengers and bicycles until electrification is complete. 

 Supported full funding for the Caltrain Modernization project and for grade 
separation funding in San Mateo County. 

 
TJPA 

 Utilize my professional skills and construction background to support efforts to 
manage construction costs and keep the project on schedule. 

 Supported staff efforts to recover lost time on the construction schedule. 
 

The demand for increased SamTrans service for San Mateo County’s youth and 
aging populations is expected to grow exponentially in the coming years.  At the same 
time, projections for operating revenues are on the decline.  The major goals and 
challenges facing SamTrans in the next few years include: 
 

 Becoming a financially sustainable organization; 
 Optimizing mobility services within San Mateo County and the region as the 

jobs/housing imbalance continues to worsen; 
 Exploring new service models which get people from Caltrain and BART stations 

to major employment centers along the US 101 corridor; 
 Ensuring adequate service is provided to all parts of our community;  
 Planning and preparing for the transit needs of the future. 

 
These goals and challenges are intricately woven together throughout our County 

and throughout the region.  Solutions will require common sense, careful oversight, 
careful decision-making, listening to and partnering with our communities, leveraging 
programs with other transit agencies, and hard work.  Only through regional cooperation 
and respect for the similarities and differences of each community, will we be able to 
collectively continue to provide vital transportation services for all San Mateo County 
residents. 
 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
I believe my current term as a Board Member can be characterized by my hard 

work, active participation, asking of hard questions, championing of new initiatives and 
leveraging of my professional background and experiences in architecture and 
construction to ensure that the large and substantial capital programs that are underway 
are completed on time and on budget.   
 

My demonstrated participation as a board member, combined with my elected 
and professional experience, capabilities, focus and work ethic have enabled me to 
address the issues at hand, and to continue to make a difference for our County’s 
future. Thank you for your consideration and for your support to serve for another term. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
Jeff Gee, Councilmember 
City of Redwood City 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
C:   John D. Seybert, Mayor 
 City Council Members, Redwood City  
 Sukhmani Purewal, Agenda Administrator and Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
JEFF GEE 

SAMTRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ASSOCIATED APPOINTMENTS 
 
SamTrans 

 Implementation the SamTrans Service Plan (SSP) – the first comprehensive countywide 
adjustment to bus schedule and routes. 

 Served as Chairman of the Board, and oversaw the multi‐jurisdictional (SamTrans, 
SFMTA, VTA) recruitment effort for a new General Manager, resulting in the 
unanimous selection of Jim Hartnett. 

 Served on the Finance, Legislative and Community Relations Committees. 

 Advocated for examining how the organization utilizes its real estate assets, especially 
with regards to potential workforce housing. 

 Supported the recent initiation of a study to examine public Express Bus Service on US 
101 to reduce traffic congestion by getting commuters out of their cars. 

 Championed the effort to establish an Ad Hoc Audit Committee that is now a Standing 
Committee of the Board. 

 Supported the re‐financing of the organization’s long‐term debt, extending our 
“financial cliff” from 2015 to 2025. 

 Supported the addition of two high school youths to the Citizens Advisory Council. 

 Advocated for increased access to Board meetings through audio recording and 
internet broadcast of meetings (to be completed by June 2017) 

 
Caltrain 

 Supported the purchase of additional cars from LA Metro to increase capacity for both 
passengers and bicycles until electrification is complete. 

 Supported full funding for the Caltrain Modernization project and for grade separation 
funding in San Mateo County. 

 Supported the award of contracts for new electric trains and the electrification 
infrastructure for the Caltrain Modernization project which will reduce travel times, 
expand service, and double ridership. 

 Advocated for the requirement of one restroom facility on each new train set. 

 Utilize my professional experience to advocate for Internal Audits and Budget 
Forecasting on the Caltrain Modernization project. 

TJPA 

 Utilize my professional skills and construction background to support efforts to manage 
construction costs and keep the project on schedule. 

 Supported staff efforts to recover lost time on the construction schedule. 

 Asked that staff provide monthly updates regarding project costs, schedule impacts, 
and anticipated issues – the project is now forecast to be complete on schedule 
(December 2017) and to be $80 million less than previously forecast. 

 Currently advocating for the implementation of DTX (Downtown Extension) as soon as 
financially viable – to have trains run from 4th & King to the new Transbay Terminal. 

 
 



  

OFFICE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 330 West 20th Avenue 
San Mateo, California   94403-1338 

Telephone (650) 522-7048 
FAX: (650) 522-7041 

www.cityofsanmateo.org

 
 
 
 
November 20, 2016 
 
Re:  Re-Appointment to the San Mateo County Transportation Authority  
 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Colleagues, 
 
Thank you for your continued support as I seek reappointment to my current seat on the 
San Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA) representing the Central Judicial Cities. 
It has been a distinct honor to represent you and serve the citizens of San Mateo County 
dealing with some of the most complex and pressing issues of our time.  
 
The TA has achieved significant progress in the last year with approval and funding for 
major transportation improvements including grade separations, countywide shuttles, 
pedestrian and bicycle plans, and collaboration with CCAG on a study to address traffic 
congestion and solutions on the HWY 101 corridor, just to name a few.  
 
The prospect of pursuing and completing many of the critical projects currently in the 
pipeline is very exciting to me and important to all of us. I will continue to address our 
common objectives and seek long-range solutions that will benefit all of our communities, 
and strive to make San Mateo County a transportation model for the Bay Area. 
 
I have enjoyed partnering and collaborating with you as we seek innovative solutions to 
our shared regional challenges. I appreciate the opportunity to continue our dialogue and 
welcome your ideas and suggestions. As always, feel free to contact me at 650-350-8115.  
 
My very best wishes to you and your family for a wonderful Thanksgiving Holiday. I look 
forward to seeing you at the Council of Cities meeting in Colma next month.  
 
Gratefully, 

 
Maureen Freschet 
Council Member, City of San Mateo 
 







December 1, 2016 

 

Dear colleagues, 

 

It has been an honor to serve you on the San Mateo County Transportation Authority as the 

South County representative for almost the past two years. I am writing to seek your support for 

my reappointment to the board at the upcoming Council of Cities meeting. 

 

We have taken important steps over the past two years to improve mobility and transportation 

infrastructure in San Mateo County, including contributing funding to the electrification of 

Caltrain, highway interchange improvements, a critical grade separation, commuter shuttles, 

and bike and pedestrian improvements. We have also moved forward the long term Highway 

101 managed lanes project to reduce traffic congestion on this vital transportation corridor. 

 

During my tenure as a board member I have contributed meaningful comments to our 

discussions, and volunteered to serve on two subcommittees. I have taken votes to preserve 

the integrity of the Transportation Authority, even when it has come at the expense of projects 

for my own city. 

 

I am excited about the work ahead to improve transportation options for all of our residents, and 

I would be honored to have your support for reappointment to the Transportation Authority. 

 

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration. Should you have any questions, I can be reached 

on my cell phone at 650-796-7997. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Cameron Johnson 

Mayor of San Carlos 



 

ANN KEIGHRAN, MAYOR 
RICARDO ORTIZ, VICE MAYOR 
MICHAEL BROWNRIGG 
DONNA COLSON 
EMILY BEACH  

 

TEL:  (650) 558-7200 
FAX:  (650) 566-9282 
www.burlingame.org 

 
       The City of Burlingame 

 
CITY HALL, 501 PRIMROSE ROAD 

BURLINGAME, CALIFORNIA  94010-3997 

 
November 28, 2016 

 

Honorable Colleagues, 
 
I am writing to ask for your support as I seek appointment to the San Mateo County Transportation 
Authority Board of Directors representing the Peninsula Cities-at-Large. I am passionate about 
improving our infrastructure and providing cost-effective, convenient, sustainable transportation 
alternatives.  Thoughtful investment in transit significantly improves our quality of life and helps solve 
our housing and environmental challenges. 
 
I think about transit often.  Two favorite books on my nightstand include Walkable City and Traffic.  My 
family relies on multi-modal transit every day.  Ours is a one-car family of committed cyclists. I bike to 
most city meetings in Burlingame, and often ride Caltrain to regional meetings.  My husband 
commutes daily to San Francisco by bicycle and rides Caltrain or BART home. My children bike and 
walk to school. I’ve lived in Europe, Asia, and the Middle East, so I understand how highly functional 
(and dysfunctional!) transit systems impact quality of life, the economy, and the environment.  
  
Our Cities-at-Large TA Board Member must represent all cities fairly. She should be a curious thinker 
who listens well, seeks to understand the local needs of our diverse cities, sees the big picture, and 
works collaboratively to address the transportation needs of our county. Our citizens’ tax dollars must 
be responsibly and equitably distributed to yield maximum regional impact.  The list of worthy 
transportation projects is long.  Caltrain electrification, east-west connections, 101 corridor 
improvements, shuttle systems, grade separations, Dumbarton Corridor, bike/pedestrian 
improvements, and the ongoing need for road maintenance require thoughtful Board Members to 
make decisions in accordance with the TA’s five-year strategic plan.  
 
I feel fortunate to have bandwidth for this added responsibility. Second only to family, Councilmember 
commitments are my top priority.  I take advance meeting preparation seriously. I am a big-thinker and 
an optimist. I am engaged. I ask tough questions and participate respectfully in debates.  My 
colleagues on regional transportation bodies like the Caltrain Modernization Local Policy Makers 
Group where I serve as Vice Chair, C/CAG’s Congestion Management and Environmental Quality 
Committee, and Commute.org Board of Directors have seen me demonstrate these qualities. 
 
Additionally, my professional experience has prepared me to be a strong SMCTA Board Member.  
Since graduating from the University of Notre Dame (Notre Dame, IN) with a B.A. in Government and 
Spanish, my career has been rooted in teamwork.  I am a former U.S. Army Captain, Business Unit 
Manager in the technology industry, and President of a non-profit fundraising organization. I know how 

 



 

to work with diverse groups of people to tackle challenges, build consensus, set goals, and achieve 
results.  
 
Thank you for considering me for appointment to the Transportation Authority Board of Directors on 
December 16th. See you at the Firehouse!  
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Emily Beach 
Councilmember, City of Burlingame 
Email: ebeach@burlingame.org  
Cell:    415-377-8125  

mailto:ebeach@burlingame.org






 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Updated on 4/9/2015 

TO: Sukhmani Purewal,  Secretary 
City Selection Committee 

SUBJECT: Alternate to the City Selection Committee 

I __________________________, Mayor of the City/Town of _____________________________,  

hereby appoint Councilmember __________________________________________, to  serve as my 

alternate to the City Selection Committee meeting(s). 

In the absence of my appointee, I then appoint: (Please choose one) 

_______ Councilmember __________________________________ to represent me 

_______ Vice-Mayor and each Councilmember in order of seniority 

 (You must check only ONE of the following options) 

My alternate is to serve for the: 

______                                       meeting only 
               Date 

_______ duration of my term of office as Mayor 

_______ I do not choose to appoint an alternate 

________________________________________   ___________________________ 
Signature of Mayor      Date 

Please return to: 
Sukhmani Purewal, Secretary  
City Selection Committee 
Hall of Justice, 400 County Center / CMO 105 
Redwood City, CA 94063 

Or Fax to 650 363-1916 or bring to the meeting 

If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to call me (650) 363-1802 

 SAN MATEO COUNTY 
 CITY SELECTION 
 COMMITTEE 

Elizabeth Lewis, Chairperson 
Marie Chuang, Vice Chairperson 

Sukhmani Purewal, City Selection Secretary 
400 County Center 
Redwood City, CA 94063 
(650) 363-1802 

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Council Committee Assignments  Page 1 of 1 
11/29/16 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016 

SUBJECT: City Council Committee Assignments for 2017 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council determine the Council Member Committee Assignments 
for 2016, and adopt the following motion: 

MOTION APPROVING COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS FOR 2017 AND GRANTING TO THE 
APPOINTEE DISCRETION IN VOTING ON MATTERS BROUGHT BEFORE THE 
COMMITTEE. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In addition to their primary role as Elected Officials of the Town of Colma, the City Council 
Members serve on a variety of committees that involve the direct participation of its members in 
a host of local and regional issues and organizations. It is the Town’s practice for the Council to 
review and modify committee assignments when a new Mayor is selected, and when a new 
Council Member is installed, as is the case this year.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action has no fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND 

After the Reorganization of the City Council, Council Members review the committee 
assignments of the previous term and consider changes. Attached is a worksheet showing the 
current committee assignments, approved by the City Council on December 9, 2015. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council determine the Council Member Committee Assignments 
for 2017, adopt a motion approving Committee Assignments for 2017 and grant to the 
appointee discretion on voting matters brought before the committee. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Council Committee Assignments Worksheet 

Item #10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



City Council 
Committee Assignments for 2017 

Committee Name 2016 
Primary 

2016 
Secondary 

2017 
Primary 

2017 
Secondary 

Office of Emergency Services 
(EMERGENCY SERVICES COUNCIL, MEETS QUARTERLY 3rd 
THURSDAYS IN  JANUARY, APRIL, JUNE & SEPTEMBER, , 
AT 5:30 PM, AT THE HALL OF JUSTICE IN REDWOOD CITY 
IN JURY ASSEMBLY ROOM) 

Colvin del Rosario 

Colma Creek Flood District   
(MEETS  QUARTERLY, 2nd TUESDAY @ 3PM  IN  MARCH, 
JUNE, SEPTEMBER AND DECEMBER AT CITY HALL, SOUTH 
SAN FRANCISCO) 

Fisicaro Colvin 

Peninsula Congestion Relief Alliance  - “The Alliance” 
Board of Directors member  
(6 X A YEAR, THURSDAY MORNINGS)  

Gonzalez Colvin 

C/CAG    
(2nd THURSDAY OF THE MONTH, 7PM) Silva Colvin 

League of California Cities   
(ANNUAL CONFERENCE, AND WORKSHOPS THROUGHOUT 
THE YEAR) 

All 

San Mateo County Council of Cities 
(MONTHLY DINNER AND MEETING) 

Colvin is the 
voting 

representative 

All Council 
Members can 

attend 
Mayor/Chamber Walks  
(SCHEDULED BETWEEN THE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER & 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, APPROXIMATELY  5+ 
OUTINGS)  

Colvin 
All other 
Council 

Members 

City Representative at Colma-Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce  
(1-2 MEETINGS A YEAR, AS NEEDED) 

Colvin Fisicaro 

Legislative Committee (C/CAG) 
(ONCE PER MONTH, ON 2nd THURSDAYS AT 5PM) Silva 

ABAG Representative  
(GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETS TWICE PER YEAR APRIL & 
OCTOBER) 

del Rosario Gonzalez 

Housing and Community Development Commission (HCDC) 
(MEETINGS ARE DURING THE DAYTIME, AS NEEDED. 
MORE MEETINGS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR.  
APPOINTED BY CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE)    

Fisicaro 

Grand Boulevard Task Force  
(MEETS 3rd WEDNESDAY, 10AM-12 NOON, MARCH, JUNE, 
SEPTEMBER, DECEMBER AT EITHER SAM TRANS IN SAN 
CARLOS OR CITY HALL IN SANTA CLARA)   

Silva Gonzalez 

Sustainable Communities Strategy and Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation Policy Advisory Committee 
(NO MEETINGS SCHEDULED AT THIS TIME) 

Fisicaro Silva 

Closing the Jobs/Housing Gaps Task Force 
(MEETS 4th WEDNESDAY, 7AM AT THE SAN MATEO 
COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING) 

Fisicaro 

Point of Contact for the San Mateo County Energy Strategy 
Program  
(NO MEETINGS SCHEDULED AT THIS TIME) 

Fisicaro 

Peninsula Clean Energy Board of Directors  
(MEETS 4th THURSDAY, 6:30PM AT THE COUNTY OFFICE 
OF EDUCATION BUILDING IN REDWOOD CITY) 

Silva Gonzalez 

These positions are not compensated. 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Adding Section 2.07.065, Regulating the Bark Park  Page 1 of 4 

25977.00100\29372425.1
11/16/16  

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2016 

SUBJECT: Bark Park Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following: 

ORDINANCE ADDING SECTION 2.07.065 TO THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING 
TO BARK PARK REGULATIONS, AND WAIVE A FURTHER READING OF THE ORDINANCE. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance establishes rules and regulations for use of the Bark Park located on 
the west end of D Street.  Upon receiving calls from residents voicing their concern over some 
questionable usage at the park, staff realized there were no established rules in the 
Administrative Code or the Municipal Code for the use of the Bark Park.  The proposed rules 
allow staff to enforce unwanted behavior or questionable usage, and were written in the best 
interests of health, safety, and general welfare of the park users, and are in alignment with 
what other jurisdictions have established for Dog Parks in San Mateo County.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance will have a minimal impact on the operating budget for the purchase of 
a Bark Park Rules sign.  Estimated cost is $350-$400.  

BACKGROUND 

The Bark Park was built in the early 1990’s and is 33 feet by 100 feet (3,300 sq. ft.) or about 
the size of one housing lot in the Sterling Park neighborhood.  The park was built as an off 
leash area for dogs to run, play and socialize.  Over the past few years staff has noticed an 
increase in usage at the Bark Park creating opportunities for issues to arise, and driving the 
need to establish rules and regulations.  Staff attributes the increase in usage to: 

• An increase in pet ownership.  According to an SF Gate article from June 17, 2007 there
were an estimated 120,000 dogs in San Francisco (SF Animal Care & Control) compared
to 108,000-113,000 children (U.S. census figures from 2000 and 2005).  Also, according

Item #11



Staff Report Adding Section 2.07.065, Regulating the Bark Park  Page 2 of 4 
 
25977.00100\29372425.1  
11/16/16  

to the American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (ASPCA) approximately 
37 percent to 47 percent of households in the United States have a dog.    

• An increase in population/housing.  Since 2003 several condominium, townhouse and 
apartment buildings have been built within the Town of Colma and unincorporated areas 
including the Verano townhomes (63 units), Villa Hoffman townhomes (18 units), La 
Terraza apartments (153 units) and the Trestle Glen apartments (119 units).   

• Dog walking industry.  In the past few months staff has seen a local dog walker using 
the Bark Park as a regular place to exercise client dogs. 

Based on the above mentioned increase in housing and estimated households with dogs, and 
local dog walkers, the Bark Park has experienced greater use than in years past.  Therefore 
staff is proposing an ordinance establishing rules for the Bark Park. 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed ordinance attached establishes rules and regulations for off leash activities of 
dogs and their handlers within the Bark Park, and is in the best interests of the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the residents of Colma.   

Proposed rules A-H in the attached ordinance are already part of the Colma Municipal Code, 
Government Code, and Health & Safety Code.  Staff recommends that these already adopted 
codes apply to the Bark Park (i.e. transferring liability, prohibiting alcohol, setting park hours, 
no smoking, dangerous animal, etc.)  

Below is a list of newly proposed rules for the use of the Bark Park and brief explanation as to 
why they are being recommended: 

• Item (i) to the attached ordinance - Children fifteen (15) years of age and younger must 
be accompanied and supervised by a responsible adult while in the Bark Park. 

While at play, dogs tend to run, jump, gnaw, and paw at one another and may run in to small 
children knocking them over.  Also, small children may approach a dog that is not familiar them, 
and may react aggressively potentially causing injury.  Therefore staff is recommending that 
children be supervised at all times when in the Bark Park. 

•  Item (j) to the attached ordinance - No food of any kind is allowed in the Bark Park to 
ensure the public safety and welfare of both dogs and people in the Bark Park as food 
can lead to dog fights. 

Dogs can sometimes become territorial around food which can lead to aggression towards other 
dogs or people. 

• Item (k) to the attached ordinance - No Responsible Person shall have more than three 
(3) dogs at once in the Bark Park to ensure proper handling of each dog and to ensure 
the public health, safety and welfare. 



Staff Report Adding Section 2.07.065, Regulating the Bark Park  Page 3 of 4 
 
25977.00100\29372425.1  
11/16/16  

There have been several articles1 written over the past few years on how many dogs per 
responsible owner are too many. In general, some articles say four should be the limit, but 
there are dog parks that allow six or eight dogs per responsible owner.  However, if an issue 
were to arise like a dog fight or a group of dogs bullying another dog, one person can physically 
manage only one to two dogs at a time. Additionally, to ensure all users can make use of the 
Bark Park based on its limited size, staff is recommending three dogs per responsible owner in 
order to ensure safety and accommodate all Bark Park users. 

• Item (l) to the attached ordinance - Dogs shall not be kept on a leash inside the Bark 
Park. The Bark Park is an "off leash" area.  Choke chains, prong collars, and head collars 
(Halti, Gentle Leader, etc.) are recommended to be removed before letting a dog loose 
in the Bark Park. 

Choke chains and prong collars have been known to get caught on fencing and sometimes 
cause injury to themselves or to other dogs while at play.   

• Item (m) to the attached ordinance - Each Responsible Person is responsible for 
repairing damages to the Bark Park or Bark Park facilities caused by their dog(s) (e.g. 
filling in holes). 

For all users to enjoy the Bark Park and to prevent injury to dogs and people, visitors should be 
responsible for repairing damages caused by their dogs.  This includes filling in holes in the 
grass or dirt, or damages that need to be reported to the Town for repairs. 

• Item (n) to the attached ordinance - It shall be unlawful for a Responsible Person in the 
Bark Park not to immediately pick up and properly dispose of the feces of their dog(s).  
Proper disposal shall include the placement of such feces in a bag or other container and 
its disposal in a trash receptacle. 

This rule is in alignment with CMC 8.01.075 that prohibits a dog from being off-leash in public 
areas of the Town of Colma, including public parks. 

• Item (o) to the attached ordinance - No person shall place or allow to be placed a 
female dog in heat or pre-heat in the Bark Park. 

Male dogs have a tendency to be defensive or aggressive with other un-neutered male dogs 
when a female dog in heat is present.  If these situations occur, dogs may fight with one 
another, and in doing so, may cause harm to users within the Bark Park.    

• Item (p) to the attached ordinance - No person shall place or allow to be placed a sick 
dog in the Bark Park.  Sickness includes any animal disease that is dangerous or 
transmittable to humans or other animals, including, but not limited to, kennel cough, 
Giardia, and rabies. 

                                           
1 The Bark, Dog Walkers with Multiple Dogs, November 2010; Ohmidog.com, How many dogs can a Dog 
Walker walk, April 2014; BreedingBusiness.com, Before the days of Dog Walkers and Dog Sitters.   



Staff Report Adding Section 2.07.065, Regulating the Bark Park  Page 4 of 4 
 
25977.00100\29372425.1  
11/16/16  

Kennel cough, Giardia and rabies are all highly transmittable illnesses to dogs and 
sometimes humans.  For the general safety and well-being of Bark Park users, animals who 
are sick or that have been diagnosed with these illnesses should not visit the park. 

• Item (q) to the attached ordinance - Responsible Persons shall, at all times, take all 
reasonable precautions to prevent their dog(s) from biting, attacking or attempting to 
bite or attack any person or dog. A Responsible Person shall immediately remove his or 
her dog from the Bark Park if it bites, attacks or attempts to bite or attack any person or 
dog. A Responsible Person whose dog is bitten or attacked shall immediately remove his 
or her dog from the Bark Park. 

For the general safety and well-being of all users of the Bark Park, handlers should monitor 
their dogs behavior at all times when in the park. If the dog begins to demonstrate aggressive 
behavior towards people or other dogs, the handler shall remove the dog from the Bark Park.  

• Item (r) to the attached ordinance - Any dog which has been repeatedly aggressive or 
attempted to attack or bite another dog or a person, or whose Responsible Person fails 
on more than two (2) occasions to abide by the reasonable rules and regulations 
applicable to the Bark Park may be barred from further use of the Bark Park by notice 
and order of the City, in its discretion. 

For the general safety and well-being for all user of the Bark Park, this provision is in place as a 
consequence to park users who repeatedly fail to manage their dogs while using the Bark Park. 

Enforcement of the proposed ordinance will be through the issuance of administrative citations.  
Under the Town’s existing Chapter 2.07, the Colma Police are authorized to issue administrative 
citations for any violations of any park rules and regulations.  With the inclusion of the Bark 
Park regulations in this Chapter 2.07, the Colma Police will be authorized to issue administrative 
citations for any violations of the Bark Park regulations.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s introduction and ultimate adoption of the ordinance is consistent with the 
value of responsibility as the ordinance ensures the general safety and welfare of all Bark park 
users.   
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to introduce the ordinance or may choose to propose 
changes or omit some of the rules presented.  At a minimum, the Council should introduce the 
ordinance, but may discuss any changes.  Introducing the ordinance with or without changes 
will ensure the general safety and well-being to the users of the Bark Park. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should introduce the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\29372426.1
11/16/16

ORDINANCE NO.___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.07.065 
REGARDING DOG PARK REGULATIONS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) The Colma Municipal Code (“CMC”) Section 8.01.070 currently does not allow a dog to 
be off-leash in public areas of the Town of Colma, including public parks. 

(b) The Town of Colma’s Dog Park, known as the “Bark Park,” is located on the west end of 
D Street off Clark Avenue in Colma. 

(c) The Town finds that authorizing and regulating the parameters of off-leash activities of 
dogs and their responsible persons within the Bark Park is in the best interests of the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the residents of Colma. Further, the Town of Colma believes that 
limiting certain activities and young children from the Bark Park serves the public interest by 
preventing safety accidents and ensuring the public health, safety, and welfare of the 
community. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings 
of the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 2.07.065 ADDED. 

Section 2.07.065 shall be and hereby is added to the Colma Municipal Code as follows: 

2.07.065 Bark Park Regulations. 

This section shall apply to the Town of Colma’s Dog Park, known as the “Bark Park,” in addition 
to all other regulations of this CMC Chapter 2.07.  For the purposes of this section, the term 
“Responsible Person” shall mean any person age eighteen (18) years or older who owns, has a 
proprietary or possessory interest in, harbors or has the care, charge, control, custody or 
possession of any dog. 

(a) Pursuant to Government Code section 831.7, the Town shall not be held liable for injury 
or death of a person or pet resulting solely from the actions of a dog in a dog park.  Each 
Responsible Person is solely responsible and liable for the actions of their dog. 

Attachment A



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park  Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\29372426.1  
11/16/16  

(b) Consuming, possessing or keeping on or about his or her person any alcoholic beverage 
pursuant to Section 2.07.060(12) is hereby prohibited in the Bark Park.   

(c) Smoking, lighting or carrying a lighted pipe, cigar, cigarette, or other smoking device of 
any kind in the Bark Park is prohibited consistent with Section 2.07.060(19).  

(d) The Bark Park is open from sunrise to sunset pursuant to Section 2.07.030.  No dogs or 
persons are permitted in the Bark Park from sunset to sunrise. 

(e) All dogs must be vaccinated for rabies and legally licensed prior to use of the Bark Park 
as required by CMC Chapter 8.01.  Any Responsible Person must be able to produce evidence of 
vaccination and licensing upon request by proper authorities.  

(f) No person shall place or allow to be placed in the Bark Park any dog that has been 
designated as a Dangerous or Vicious Animal pursuant to CMC Chapter 8.01 or any similar 
animal control regulation.   

(g) Dog bites shall be reported immediately to the Colma Police Department or San Mateo 
County Animal Control at 650-997-8321 or 650-340-8200 or as provided in CMC 8.01.260. 

(h) Dogs under the age of four (4) months are not permitted in the Bark Park pursuant to 
section 121690 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(i) Children fifteen (15) years of age and younger must be accompanied and supervised by 
a responsible adult while in the Bark Park. 

(j) No food of any kind is allowed in the Bark Park to ensure the public safety and welfare 
of both dogs and people in the Bark Park as food can lead to dog fights. 

(k) No Responsible Person shall have more than three (3) dogs at once in the Bark Park to 
ensure proper handling of each dog and to ensure the public health, safety and welfare.  

(l) Dogs shall not be kept on a leash inside the Bark Park. The Bark Park is an "off leash" 
area.  Choke chains, prong collars, and head collars (Halti, Gentle Leader, etc.) are 
recommended to be removed before letting a dog loose in the Bark Park.  

(m) Each Responsible Person is responsible for repairing damages to the Bark Park or Bark 
Park facilities caused by their dog(s) (e.g. filling in holes, etc.).  

(n) It shall be unlawful for a Responsible Person in the Bark Park not to immediately pick up 
and properly dispose of the feces of their dog(s).  Proper disposal shall include the placement of 
such feces in a bag or other container and its disposal in a trash receptacle. 

(o) No person shall place or allow to be placed a female dog in heat or pre-heat in the Bark 
Park. 

(p) No person shall place or allow to be placed a sick dog in the Bark Park.  Sickness 
includes any animal disease that is dangerous or transmittable to humans or other animals, 
including, but not limited to, kennel cough, Giardia, and rabies. 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park  Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\29372426.1  
11/16/16  

(q) Responsible Persons shall, at all times, take all reasonable precautions to prevent their 
dog(s) from biting, attacking or attempting to bite or attack any person or dog. A Responsible 
Person shall immediately remove his or her dog from the Bark Park if it bites, attacks or 
attempts to bite or attack any person or dog. A Responsible Person whose dog is bitten or 
attacked shall immediately remove his or her dog from the Bark Park. 

(r) Any dog which has been repeatedly aggressive or attempted to attack or bite another 
dog or a person, or whose Responsible Person fails on more than two (2) occasions to abide by 
the reasonable rules and regulations applicable to the Bark Park may be barred from further use 
of the Bark Park by notice and order of the City, in its discretion. 

 

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. __ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on December 14, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on ______________, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

      



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park  Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\29372426.1  
11/16/16  

      

       

      

      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 


	Agenda - 12.14.16
	1. Closed Session
	2. 11.09.16  Regular Minutes
	3. Report of Checks Paid - November
	4. Second Reading - 1670 Mission Road - PD Zone Amendment Ordinance
	5. Second Reading - Recreational Marijuana Ordinance
	6. First Quarter Financial Report (July 2016 - September 2016)
	A. Quarterly Financial Report - First Quarter 2016-17

	7. 442-468 B Street - Colma Estates Subdivision
	A. Resolution - Tealdi Final Map Approval
	B. Colma Estates-Final Map
	C. Tealdi Subdivision Improvement Agreement

	8. Climate Action Plan Progress Report
	A. Climate Action Program Implemenation Chronology

	9. Council of Cities and City Selection Comittee
	A. City Selection 2016
	B. Letters of Interest
	Rick Bonilla, San Mateo
	Wayne Lee, Millbrae
	Carlos Romero, East Palo Alto
	Doug Kim, Belmont
	Pradeep Gupta, South San Francisco
	Janet Borgens, Redwood City
	Jeffery Gee, Redwood City
	Maureen Freschet, San Mateo
	Sam Hindi, Foster City
	Cameron Johnson, San Carlos
	Emily Beach, Burlingame
	Liza Normandy, South San Francisco
	Mike O'Neill, Pacifica

	C. Proxy Designee Form

	10. City Council Committee Assignments for 2017
	A. Council Committee Assignments Worksheet 2017

	11. Bark Park Ordinance
	A. Ordinance - Bark Park




